e
o

| o /\:9 Lo k\ —
LA f@‘a lll\l\l\llll\)\l\‘I\IU\l\\\||l||U|“|“|||“||U

02031279

ROCESSED
| WAy 00 2R

THOMSON
FINANCIAL

CANON
 ANNUAL
REPORT

2001

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

Camon



The Canon Group’s 93,620 employees* develop,
manufacture and market cameras, business machines
and optical products around the globe.

Despite a harsh operating environment in 2001,
Canon reported record consolidated sales and income
thanks to strong demand for major products and the
success of management reforms. Phase (I of the
Excellent Global Corporation Plan, which commenced in
2001, aims to continue those reforms while expanding
our businesses and boosting profitability.

Canon'’s corporate philosophy is kyosei, or living
and working together for the common good. To become
a truly excellent global corporate group, we are not only
pursuing challenging business goals, we are also fulfilling
kyosei through our far-reaching community and
environmental initiatives eround the world.

* As of December 31, 2001
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Financial
Highlights

(except per share amounts)

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

(except per share amounts)

2001 2000 2001
Net sales 2,907,573 2,696,420 $22,027,063
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle 163,869 134,088 1,241,432
Net income 167,561 134,088 1,269,402
Earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle:
Basic 187.07 153.66 1.62
Diluted 184.55 151.51 1.40
Net income:
Basic 191.29 152.66 1.45
Diluted 188.70 151.51 1.43
Total assets 2,844,756 2,832,125 21,551,182
Stockholders’ equity 1,458,476 1,298,914 711,049,061

Notes:

1. US. dollar amounts in this Annual Report, solely for the convenience of the reader, are translated from yen at the rate of ¥132 = US§1, the approximate

exchange rate on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of Decernber 28, 2001.

2. Canon adopted new accounting standards for sales incentives, and applied retroactively to the consalidated financial statements for the prior years.

Consolidated
net income
(Millions of yen)

Consolidated
net sales
(Millions of yen)
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To Our
Shareholders

A difficult operating environment prevailed around the globe in 2001, as economies suffered from the
bursting of the IT bubble and the effects of the tragedy of September 11. The U.S. economy slowed rapidly
in the second half, while Europe's stagnated further. In Asia, with the exception of the People’s Republic of
China, the climate was sluggish. The Japanese economy remained stagnant, reflecting flat consumer
spending, decreased exports and lower [T-related capital spending.

In Canon's markets, demand was favorable for digital copying machines and printers, and digital
camera demand continued to expand rapidly. However, demand in the semiconductor production
equipment market contracted further. The average value of the yen in 2001 was ¥121.60 to the U.S. dollar,
and ¥108.80 to the euro; a depreciation of 11% and 9%, respectively.

Canon recorded its second consecutive year of record consolidated net sales and net income,
thanks to the popularity of new products and improved profitability. Consolidated net sales were
¥2,907.6 billion (US$22,027 million), an increase of 7.8%. Our gross profit ratio improved 2.5
percentage points, to 44.0%, reflecting the positive effects of cost reductions and the lower value of
the yen. Operating profit totaled ¥281.8 billion (US$2,135 million), a substantial increase of 20.4%, and
net income grew by 25.0%, to ¥167.6 billion (US$1,269 million). Basic net income per share was
¥191.29 (US$1.45), a ¥37.63 (US$0.29) increase.

The Board of Directors has proposed a year-end dividend of ¥14.50 (US$0.11). Combined with the
interim dividend of ¥10.50 (US$0.08), the revised year-end dividend would bring Canon’s annual dividend
to ¥25.00 (US$0.19), a ¥4.00 (US$0.03) increase over last year.

Results by Product Group

In the business machine segment, sales totaled ¥2,223.5 billion (US$16,845 million), an increase of 5.4%
from the previous year, and operating profit increased 8.3%, to ¥334.9 billion (US$ 2,537 million). Sales of
copying machines rose 15.4%, as demand for both our digital monochrome and color models expanded.
Computer peripherals sales advanced a slight 0.2%, as demand decreased in the United States and Europe.
Sales of business systems, including facsimile machines, micrographics systems and calculators, decreased
2.7%, owing mainly to severe price competition in the facsimile market.

The camera segment experienced 19.8% growth, to ¥381.4 billion (US$2,889 million), and operating
profit expanded 11.6%, to ¥36.1 billion (US$274 million). Sales of conventional film cameras slipped with
the increasing popularity of digital models and price competition, but sales of digital cameras nearly doubled
with the launch of eight new products. New digital models also contributed to another year of substantial
growth in sales of video camcorders.

Although orders for semiconductor production equipment continued their cyclical decline, sales
of optical and other products grew a substantial 13.0%, to ¥302.7 billion (US$2,293 million), supported
by active demand through the end of 2000. Operating profit reached ¥23.9 billion (US$181 million),
an increase of 124.0%.




Mid- to Long-Term Strategies

Canon is now in Phase Il of its Excellent Global Corporation Plan, which started in 2001 and will end in 2005.
The management plan aims to guide Canon to the No.1 position worldwide in all core business areas, to build
on its R&D capabilities, to continually create new businesses and to further strengthen its financial position.

The camera market has rapidly been shifting to digital, a change that Canon viewed as a business
opportunity. We are uniquely positioned as one of the few companies to possess both photo and printing
technology. We are thus focusing on securing the No.1 spot in the digital photo market by leveraging
Canon's brand value with our unique technologies and product-development expertise.

Among our core businesses, we are already No.1 worldwide in copying machines and laser beam
printers. By setting market trends with colorization, high-speed performance and networking capabilities, we
aim to become even more competitive. In the Bubble Jet printer segment, we are boosting our presence in
both the digital photo and the office markets. Through accelerated product development and the in-house
production of key components and devices, we also aim to become No.1 in the stepper industry.

Canon continues to enhance its R&D capabilities. In addition to promoting greater development
efficiency through targeted investments, we are strengthening the common base technologies that support
product development, expanding overseas R&D activities and creating a global R&D structure.

Overcoming Challenges
One of the challenges facing Canon is the creation of a structure that is
resilient to exchange-rate fluctuations. The Company has recently been
expanding production overseas, not only to reduce costs, but also to limit
the impact of these fluctuations. Environmental impact is another important
challenge for Canon. We continue to make every attempt to limit it in all
our operations, from eco-conscious product development and green
procurement to the collection of products for recycling and reuse.
Canon's employees around the world share common
goals, which strengthens our operations. United in this way,
we are able to surmount challenges in our pursuit to become
a truly excellent global corporate group. The continued
support and cooperation of all Canon stakeholders and
customers is deeply appreciated.

%@W

Fujio Mitarai
President and CEQ
Canon Inc.




Building on Its Strengthened Foundations,
Canon Enters a New Phase of Growth

The Canon Group’s record-breaking consolidated sales and income in 2001
demonstrate the astute planning of its top management, under the leadership
of Fujio Mitarai, president and CEO of Canon inc. In the following pages, Mitarai
discusses the Excellent Global Corporation Plan and strategies for the future.

Laying the Foundations for Success
In 1996, soon after | became president and CEQ, we initiated Phase | of the Excellent Global
Corporation Plan, a five-year management plan. Its primary objective was to improve our
financial condition by achieving more efficient Groupwide management, widespread
cost reductions and more competitive products.

Important accomplishments under Phase | included the full-scale adoption of
cash flow management and the implementation of wide-ranging management
reforms. Compared with the end of 1995 on a consolidated basis, in
2001 the stockholders’ equity ratio rose from 35.1% to 51.3%, and
the loan-dependency ratio declined from 33.6% to 10.4%.

We reevaluated our business activities with an emphasis on
profitability, phasing out divisions that were unprofitable while
reinforcing those that were performing strongly or showed high
potential for future growth. We no longer have any business
operations that are not profitable. We also implemented widespread
production reforms, adopted a supply chain management (SCM) system
and concentrated on enhancing the competitiveness of our product lines.

Our sales in 2001 directly benefited from these activities, as well as
from strong demand in the first half of the year. In the second half, we felt the
impact of worsening global economic conditions, but the weakening yen helped limit

its effect. | think that our record-breaking sales and income, with the percentage growth
in income significantly higher than that in sales, are a clear indication that efforts to
improve our financial condition have been successful.

Stockholder’s Equity Ratio Loan-Dependency Ratio
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Interview with the President

Phase Il of the Excellent Global Corporation Plan

Phase I, another five-year management plan, was initiated in 2001. If | were to characterize them,
| would say that Phase | was a time for improving our "corporate quality,” those factors that
ensure high income and increase corporate value. In this light, | think of Phase Il as the beginning
of a period of expansion built on the solid foundations we laid in the first phase.

I have set the goal of gaining and maintaining the top global market shares in each of our
major markets. This is not simply a matter of sales. At Canon, top share and profitable operations
must go hand in hand. Our digital cameras provide a good case in point. We have been able to
come close to the No.1 position in many countries and regions, by continuously improving our
technologies and adding value to differentiate our products. This has allowed us to increase our
digital camera market share without sacrificing profitability, the kind of operational style we are
pursuing throughout our product operations.

Along with production reforms and cost reductions, we have been implementing far-reaching
reforms in our global sales and marketing structures under Phase 1l of the plan. In 2001, Canon
Sales Co,, Inc., which handles Group sales in Japan, pushed forward with bold restructuring plans,
while Canon U.S.A, Inc. took rapid steps to recover from the blows to the U.S. economy in 2001,
including reorganizing the R&D structure in the Americas. In the United Kingdom, we established
Canon Europe Ltd., which will reinforce regional operations by strengthening our European sales
network. In another move in Asia, Canon (China) Co., Ltd,, started to lay the foundations for
expansion in Asia, especially the increasingly important economy of the People’s Republic of China.

Every company in the Canon Group is committed to the principles of cash flow management
and is now thoroughly reviewing its finances. We are studying the introduction of a Groupwide
cash utilization system that will enhance investment efficiency. Group companies are also

Canon digital cameras capture market share and profits.




concentrating investment expenditures on areas of highest Canon's U.S. Patent Ranking
expected return. We are more carefully selecting investment

targets for their ability to raise the competitiveness of 1997 G
existing Canon products, or the potential to create strong 1998 G
new products and businesses. By conducting such analyses, 1999 ¥
we will continue to maintain the profitability of all our 2000 3

2001* 3d

operations.

(Source : US. Patent and Tradernark Office)
* Preliminary count

Canon'’s Technology Leadership

Canon has always been a technology-intensive corporation, as evidenced by 2001 being the
tenth consecutive year we were in the top three organizations receiving U.S. patents.

New technologies are key to our success, and R&D-based expansion plays a central role in Phase
Il of the plan. While aiming for the No.1 position in all of our businesses, | am placing special
emphasis on digital photo products, such as digital cameras and Bubble Jet printers, and
steppers. Increased in-house development of key components and devices, which will raise the
competitiveness of our products, will also be an important part of our drive to the top.

We have several high-potential new business prospects, including the SED next-generation
wall-mounted display, the digital radiography system and commercial-use Bubble Jet printers such
as network printers and wide-format printers. | see a bright future for these new fields, and we are
speeding up R&D to commercialize viable products. In addition to these hardware-centered new
businesses, | am calling for the full-scale development of solutions, which can be loosely defined
as products that combine innovative hardware and software to meet specific customer needs.

Cell production raises efficiency while freeing plant space.




Interview with the President

New Production Reform Activities
The shift from conveyor belts to the cell production system at our plants and the '
adoption of the SCM system helped us to make great strides. We continue
seeking new ways to institute reform and reduce production costs. Now that
we have shown the extent to which cell production can raise efficiency,
| think it's time to start an internal revolution in factory automation that
takes advantage of our cell expertise. | am confident our diverse
approaches to automation will further enhance cell production.

In addition, we are reorganizing our global production
structure. In 2001, we established two new manufacturing
subsidiaries in China, and one in Vietnam. These new bases will
help our products be more competitive in the global market. Our
production structure will become much more strategic in the next
several years, based on the needs and specific characteristics of the
regions in which we operate.

Globalization and Diversification
The path for the Canon Group might be termed global diversification, because one cannot ‘
exist without the other. | am urging all of our companies to add value to the entire Group by
creating their own profitable businesses. Several successful examples can be seen at our
subsidiaries in Japan, and we are now taking the concept global.

To most effectively meet the needs in specific regions, we must be able to develop and
produce distinctive products locally. In the United States, we have formed a subsidiary to
centralize and strategize our R&D activities in the Americas. | ook forward to this company's
progress, including the adoption of its innovations by Canon operations in other regions.

The ultimate goal of global diversification will be our establishment of regional headquarters
that oversee all activities, from product development and production to marketing and after-sales support.
We still have a long road to travel before we reach this goal, but we are seeing definite progress.

Recent Environmental Initiatives and Successes
We view our commitment to preserving the environment as a fundamental responsibility of being
a good corporate citizen. It is also a crucial component of our corporate philosophy of kyosei, or
living and working together for the common good.

Just as Canon was the first organization in Japan to be certified under BS7750, which
became the basis for the ISO 14001 global standard for environmental management systems,
| want us to lead our industry in sustainable development efforts. As in all of our business
activities, we are approaching the environment from the standpoint of diversification. Even as we
continue to enhance our product collection and recycling system, we are also developing
environmentally conscious products that incorporate recycled and reused parts and components.



Interview with the President

Our commitment to the environment is now reflected in all our product

N N

development activities. The environment can also be good business in and of itself,
as we are illustrating with products such as our new CO2 dry cleaning system, an
environmentally conscious cleaning method for used parts and components,
and with the commercialization of a bioremediation process we developed
to purify polluted soil, as well as with the rollout of a site assessment
business that provides measurements of the levels of air, water
and soil pollution. These advances not only benefit our own
operations, they are also attractive to other environmentally
conscious manufacturers.

Challenges of the Post-IT Bubbie Operating Environment
Many are lamenting the fate of industries related to information technology
(IT), but I think this is premature. IT is already an important factor in our lives,
and continues to provide benefits. We learned some hard lessons after the IT
bubble burst, but the industry is already showing signs of growing stronger as a
result. Canon intends to be right up there with the leaders.

Demand remains high in certain industries, and the U.S. economy will likely

maintain steady growth through 2002. It is difficult to predict Europe’s direction, but the

full-scale adoption of the euro will certainly bring about changes. | think Canon is amply
prepared for the future, however, thanks to our efforts to strengthen our European sales
structure. In Asia, the entry of China into the World Trade Organization (WTO) opened a new
door to regional growth, and we are working to establish both sales and production foundations
as rapidly as possible. Unfortunately, the Japanese economy remains in a persistent slump, and
will almost certainly lag behind the rest of the world in economic recovery. Here, we must
continue reforming our sales and production operations so that we are prepared to take
immediate advantage of the turnaround when it occurs.

The Indomitable Canon Spirit

Canon has never been a company to shirk challenge. In the six years since we began implementing
management reforms, everyone in the Canon Group has acted with courage and unity of purpose
to overcome formidable difficulties. The Canon spirit of overcoming hurdles has added value to
our Group at a time when many companies are retrenching. | would like our shareholders to
know that this spirit, far from weakening, is now part of our very corporate DNA. Challenges lie
ahead, both known and unforeseeable, but we will continue to meet them with the steadfastness
that has propelled us this far in becoming a truly excellent global corporate group.




Canon
in 2001

In 2001, Canon entered Phase Il of the Excellent Global
Corporation Plan, a new five-year management plan.
The Management Strategy Committee was established to
oversee activities under Phase I, with a special emphasis
on Groupwide efficiency. We reinforced our R&D structure
in the Americas by forming Canon Development
Americas, Inc., which is enhancing regional R&D and
leveraging its highly advanced technologies in Canon
activities worldwide. In Europe, newly created Canon
Europe Ltd., based in central London, is coordinating
regional functions through the Corporate Strategy Centre,
and also operates two business units to develop Canon's
solutions and advanced technology businesses in the
region. Activities in Asia focused on Canon'’s global
production structure with the establishment of three new
manufacturing companies: Canon Vietnam Co., Ltd. near
Hanoi, and Canon (Suzhou) Inc. and Canon Zhongshan
Business Machines Co., Ltd. in China. Pursuing effective,
region-specific strategies, Canon is realizing its goal of
becoming a truly excellent global corporate group.
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. - Fujio Mitarai, Can?n Inc.’s president and CEO,
) n =" was named one of the worid’s top 25
}"‘Jw” w//’(;_}i | managers in 2001 by leading U.S.Pmagazine
= J 3| BusinessWeek. Mitarai was noted for his fast
7 \‘ and decisive management style, which has
| helped propel Canon to record sales and
mm Z&JQ | income since he took office in 1995.




Putting the

Environment First

Demensiraiing fs commitnent te furiher cnhandng
envirenmental inffatves, Canen (ne established the
GloballEnviconment Headaueriass fn Janvary
2007, This fe & shgnificant towarndistiengthenings
e Canen Group’s envirenmenial as wall as
towerd malking eur eco-conscions developmants avelle
alblle for dhe of Incusisies.

Boosting Our Eco-Product
Lineup

In June 2001, Canon went one
step further in its promotion of
eco-products, introducing the
imageRUNNER 3300 (iIR3300

in other regions) digital multifunc-
tion device (MFD). Even before
its successful release, the MFD
prototype had received the

prestigious Copier of the Future
IEA-DSM Award of Excellence. It
is packed with such eco-features
as on-demand fixing (SURF),
technology that reduces energy
consumption to about one-fourth
that of conventional products,
and greatly exceeds the U.S.
ENERGY STAR standard qualifica-
tion. The imageRUNNER 3300
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was designed using as few haz-
ardous substances as possible,
utilizing lead-free lenses, soldering
and wiring, chrome-free steel
plating and ozone-free electrical
charging. It also incorporates
recycled materials created with
our sandwich-molding technique,
in which used plastic is alternated
with layers of virgin plastic.

Another widely hailed eco-prod-
uct is the S9000 wide-format
graphics Bubble Jet printer, fea-
turing an independent ink tank
system for each color, allowing
users to change only those inks
that run out. Canon also incorpo-
rated recycled plastics in the
S9000's housing. The new print-
er boasts many other hazardous
substance-free components. In
sleep mode, it uses approximately
one-fifth of the minimum elec-
tricity required under the ENERGY
STAR program.

Canon's development of envi-
ronmentally conscious technolo-
gies and products realizes the
dual goals of adding value and
preserving the environment for
future generations.

Engineering for the
Environment

In collaboration with equipment
manufacturers, Canon developed
a COz dry cleaning technology for
recycling and reuse of parts and
components. Dry ice is sprayed
on parts, where it breaks down



Canon in 2001

into particles that remove dust,
other dirt and even the most diffi-
cult stains from every portion of
the components. Foreign sub-
stances are collected and dis-
posed of, and the dry ice vapor-
izes into the air. Unlike conven-
tional cleaning systems, this one
does not use wet processes and
thus requires no drying process. in
addition to in-house applications
in areas such as copying machine
remanufacturing, we are market-
ing this technology to other com-
panies to support their own envi-
ronmental efforts.

New remediation method to purify soil

In another project, we worked
with general contractor Obayashi
Corporation to develop a new
remediation technique for remov-
ing hazardous substances from
soil. Air vents are sunk into the
ground to pump heated air into
contaminated soil. The air collects
contaminants, and is then
removed via a vacuuming
process. Those contaminants that
are not extracted with the air are

Canon sremanufactured copymg machlnes meet strmgent quality requ1rements

loosened from the soil, making
the natural remediation process
easier. The collected vapors are
filtered and safely discharged
after contaminant removal.
Canon is committed to develop-
ing technologies that preserve
the environment while enhancing
existing businesses, and creating
new ones.

Maintaining the Momentum
Canon views the timely and com-
prehensive disclosure of informa-
tion on environmental activities
and their impact as a vital com-
ponent of management. To add
further momentum to this com-
mitment, we decided to evaluate
environmental performance as
part of our consolidated business
performance in 2001. In January
2002, we formally established

11

the Global Environment
Promotion Headquarters, which
will enhance our environmental
management structure as well as
developing environment-related
businesses in Japan and over-
seas. In September 2001, we
began offering environmental
assessment services to measure
and analyze such environmental
conditions as water, air and soil
pollution. Our objective is to
develop site assessment and
environmental consulting into a
viable business.



Technology
Trends

Twoe Impertant clements n Conen’s tedinelegy siraie-
are e in-heuse devaleopment af key compenanis
and devices, and the relnforcement ef cepabili-
Hes on & gebal seale. In 2001, signifecant achicve-
ments were seen in beth of these aras, as well &s fn
the creatfien of Migh-pefeniiz] new businesses.

3D Made Simple

Canon Research Centre Europe,
Ltd. (CRE), our U.K.-based R&D
center, has started a technological
revolution with global ramifica-
tions. Its 3D Software Object
Modeller (3D S.O.M.) automati-
cally creates 3D graphic models
from sequences of still images.

i

3D S.0.M. makes possible easy 3D
graphic models

3D modeling previously required
extensive time and considerable
expertise, to say nothing of the
expense involved. With 3D S.O.M,,
however, the task is accomplished
in minutes, using images from an
ordinary digital camera. CRE and
Japan-based HI Corp,, a 3D imaging
software developer, signed an
agreement in November 2001 to

commercialize this innovative
technology. Its practical applica-
tion will be seen in high-perform-
ance rendering software to pres-
ent real-time 3D images on PCs,
Web sites, personal data assistants
(PDAs) and cellular telephones.

A Key Partnership

Canon'’s proprietary ELTRAN silicon
on insulator (SOI) wafers have
been highly rated as key compo-
nents for the production of next-
generation semiconductors. In
2001, Canon and Toshiba
Corporation joined forces in this
field. Under the agreement, the
companies are developing SOI
wafers for high-performance
semiconductors that will be used
in the digital home appliances
and telecommunications equip-
ment of the future.

Water-jet wafer-splitting ﬁechB@
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Advanced Achievements
Recognized

Canon received Japan's presti-
gious Nikkei BP Technology
Award in 2001 for its CMOS sen-
sor noise-elimination technology,
which enhances the image quality
of digital cameras and was adopted
for the Company's EOS D30 digi-
tal SLR camera. Canon was also
recognized by the Japan Institute
of Invention and Innovation (Jill),
which honored us with a 2001
Invention Award for our creation
of water-jet wafer-splitting tech-
nology, which we employ in the
production of ELTRAN SOI wafers.

RN
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Development for new products and
businesses

Canon is reinforcing its develop-
ment of key components and
devices to create such new prod-
ucts and businesses as commer-
cial-use Bubble Jet printers,
including network printers, wide-
format printers and commercial-
use photo-quality printers, a digital
radiography system, and the SED,
a high-potential, next-generation
wall-mounted display.




The Art of
Production Efficiency

Canon in 2001

Reforming preducion activities to cahanes efficeney
mg & Ly meal of Phase [ of e Excslient Gebal
Comperaiion Plan. Belstared by {he suparb resulis we
@@}a e, eur &fiers are condfinuing @ﬂmﬁﬁng all
@[ﬁ]@@uﬁ@@ﬂﬁ the Canen Grewp:

Freeing Up Production Space
Nearly all of Canon’s global man-
ufacturing facilities are adopting
the cell production method, in
which groups of several employ-
ees undertake the entire produc-
tion process in specially designed
areas called cells. This method
removes conveyor belts from
plants, contributing to significant
enhancement of space usage
and employee efficiency. In
20071, our cell production strate-
gy opened up some 17,000m?
of space, and reduced labor costs
equivalent to the work of 8,000
employees. We have also adopted
the cell production concept in our
development of production tech-
nologies. By creating measuring

Cell productlon maximizes employee skills

instruments that make ultraprecise
processing possible, in addition
to developing ultraprecise pro-
cessing devices, we are pursuing
the ultimate in efficiency.

Product development with 3D CAD

Ensuring Timely Arrival in
the Marketplace

Canon's approach to production
reform covers every phase of the
product lifecycle. At the design
stage, we are employing the
newest concurrent engineering
systems, such as 3D computer-
aided design (CAD) and stere-
olithography, to save both time
and energy in product design
activities. We are also making full
use of supply chain management
(SCM) to improve procurement
efficiency. Data is available to all
facilities—from production, sales
and marketing to headquarters—
through the SCM database on

SCM to enhance procurement efficiency

the Canon intranet system. We
are comprehensively reviewing
our logistics practices, shortening
shipping routes, grouping orders
to destinations in individual
regions, and processing and ship-
ping products for export from our
plants directly to ports, thereby
eliminating the need for midroute
distribution centers.

We are applying the technologies
that have made Canon famous to
develop better, more efficient pro-
duction methods and equipment.

Production reforms have led to a
variety of benefits. Our manufac-
turing employees are more
involved in their work, which
raises morale and encourages
individual achievement. We have
also reduced the environmental
impact of our operations. Most
important of all, however, we are
raising shareholder value by
enhancing the profitability of the
Canon Group.




Philanthropic Activities:
Investing in the Future

Canon in 2001

Retuming (e {he communiy (e benefiis we rap

o business.

Treugh eur bugihess adivites is & maltar ef course
for Canen. We believe fn being & corperas df-
zen by supperiing fmpertant sodl and elfurel infda-
tves fn cadh of the couniries and regions wWhere we

Scholarly Support

In the Americas, Canon U.S.A,,
Inc. established The Clean Earth
Campaign throughout North
America, and has been support-
ing endangered species and
habitat conservation, as well as
environmental education, for
more than a decade. Established
in 1997, the Canon National
Parks Science Scholars Program
awards scholarships to doctoral
students whose dissertation

P

| Studying a national park ecosystem

research focuses on species con-
servation, environmental science
or park management solutions
that help preserve and protect
U.S. national parks. Each Canon
Scholar receives an annual
research grant for up to three
years. In 2002, the program will
be expanded to include scholar-
ships for students working on
behalf of national parks in coun-
tries throughout the Americas.

Giving Wildlife a New Look
In Europe, Canon Europa N.V.
and the World Wide Fund for
Nature (WWF) renewed their
agreement designating Canon
Europa a WWF Conservation
Partner. It had been the first
company named under the
Conservation Partner program.
Canon is undertaking a variety of
activities on behalf of and in con-
junction with the WWEF, from
funding for educational projects
to digitizing the WWF's extensive
library of nature photographs.
The digital photo resource,
known as the WWF-Canon Photo
Gallery, is viewable on the Web
(www.panda.org/photogallery/)
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and helps significantly improve
communication through pictures.
In 20071, we helped redesign this
online resource, which now fea-
tures a gate page for each photo
series with a large-format photo
and a brief description of the ani-
mal featured, and we also devel-
oped the WWF-Canon Photo
Database, an offshoot of the
gallery for intranet use. With a
new look and enhanced informa-
tion, the WWF-Canon Photo
Callery presents a stunning visual
presentation of the world’s living
treasures.

Preserving nature’s wonders digitally

Rewarding Digital Creativity
The Canon Digital Creators
Contest, inaugurated in Japan in
2000 to foster the talents of
today's digital creators, became
truly international in 2001, with
over 6,000 submissions coming
from 57 countries. The competi-
tion awards prizes for outstanding
digital artwork in four divisions:
Digital Photo, Digital Graphics/
lllustration, Digital Movie and Web.
We are planning to further
expand this contest in the future.
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Sales results:
Business machines
(Millions of yen)

2,300,000

!

2,272,322

2,210,871
2,077,086

2,110,410
2,223,489
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Sales results:
Copying machines
(Millions of yen)

900,000

841,976
891,814

787,359

843,861
772,557

lo
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Business Machines

Copying Machines

Canon completes its imageRUNNER lineup, the global hit series powered
by a proprietary controller

With the launch of several new products featuring controller technology developed by
Canon, its lineup of <'g%z ~~ o wio-cior cedizes TR T inthe rezeil s s 0
was completed. At the low end of the market, we mcreased unit-based sales
by more than 150 percent in 2001. September saw our launch of two new models
with expandability for network printing and faxing. We are actively promoting optional
network and printer expansion modules for these products, which also contributes to
increased demand for accessories. To accurately reflect customer needs in the specifi-

cations of new products, we continue to enhance our market research activities.

From our position as undisputed leader of the global market for mid/high-range digital
MFDs, we are offering products such as the "—zzzi. - 22 2222 (22222 in other
regions), featuring excellent performance and finishing functions for high productivity.
In this field, we are marketing diverse expansion modules, software and business solu-
tions to increase customer value. This market is subject to rapid change, and customer
preferences continue to shift from analog copying machines to high-speed digital prod-
ucts. We are well positioned to take advantage of this situation, and are also enhancing

our presence in the developing markets of Asia, particularly the People's Republic of China.

Canon has strong operations for digital MFDs at the high end of the market. These
products are an especially solid solution to meet evolving needs in the printing realm.
The trend in this industry is gradually moving away from large-lot printing using expen-
sive machinery to small-lot printing on demand (POD) and personalized printing,
creating a wide range of new business opportunities for high-end digital MFDs. In 2001,
we launched e project team with the specific goal of turning the POD market potential
into solid results for the Canon Group.

Boasting a powerful line of “. -zz.c-cz2-z ~mzc- -2z for users from professional
graphic designers to business offices, we hold the edge over our competitors in Europe
and the Americas. In the same fashion as high-end digital MFDs, our full- color copying

— o~

machines have high potential in the rapidly expanding POD market. The _Z ZZZZ and
T2 zrF-E5-ZECTT controller, released for this
market in Japan, made a strong contribution to
sales in 2001. The superb performance of the
CLC 5000 made it the product of choice for a
Japanese franchise offering POD services.
What's more, by building a system solution
around the CLC 5000, we are working to enter

the market for color proofing.

our full-color copying machines are an
efficient solution for the POD market.
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Full-Color Copying Machines
Office and Personal Copying Machines

Canon dominates the global market for --z-cc-ce ooz g mac-irar fos TEEoTE
5= and achieved a new record for unit- based sales in 2001 We introduced new
digital products in Western markets during the year in response to the shift in demand
toward digital products, and favorable initial sales in the fourth quarter formed a firm
base for marketing activities from 2002 onward. Expanding demand for analog prod-
ucts in Asia, Russia, Eastern Europe, India and Brazil has helped us build solid sales
foundations in these markets. We will continue to actively launch new products to
sustain our leadership in this industry.

Digital MFDs in the newly
completed imageRUNNER series
centralize various business machine
functions - from copying and
printing to faxing and scanning -
in a single, high-performance unit.
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Sales results:
Computer peripherals
(Millions of yen)

1,000,000
100

1,038,7

938,651
1,025,352

1,022,994

937,128
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Business Machines

Computer Peripherals

New Bubble Jet printers incorporate revolutionary technology,
realizing ultrahigh image quality at ultrahigh speeds

As the inventor of Bubble Jet printing technology, Canon continues to provide customers
with the best performance the technology has to offer. In 2001, despite the difficult
operating environment facing the industry worldwide, we successfully enhanced the
competitiveness of our Bubble Jet printers. In October, we revitalized our lineup with
the launch of eight new models, including the fiagship B! F9OC in Japan (S9CC in other
regions). Offering a stunning resolution of 2400 dots per inch (dpi) and the ability to
print photograph-quality images at about one letter-size page per minute (ppm), this
revolutionary printer responds to user demands for the ultimate in image quality at high
output speeds. The S820D, another of our new models, comes with an option to connect
to and directly print from Canon digital cameras. In North America, we successfully rein-
forced our marketing structure, and created a distinctive image for the Bubble Jet brand.
To create new demand for our products worldwide, we will continue enhancing our prod-
uct lineup and developing technologies to meet the diverse needs in the marketplace.

Canon is firmly entrenched at the top of both the ccler and monochrome laser
sezm printer markets in Japan. In the former category, our development of printer
software customized for today's information system environments played a major role
in our winning large-scale contracts from commercial users in 2001. We also success-
fully lowered the cost of our color laser beam printers, thereby raising their competi-
tiveness and stimulating new demand. Our unit-based sales of monochrome laser
beam printers jumped significantly in 2007, led by low-end models for printing on
A4-size pages. Shipments to overseas markets nearly doubled. To further penetrate
the retail market for office-use monochrome laser beam printers handling large paper
sizes, we released a new, affordably priced model at the beginning of the year.
Another important marketing initiative is our promotion of network modules for our
laser beam printers, a must for the full enjoyment of information and communication
in the broadband age.

Canon is a strong player in the global market for image scarnners, and operates
among the top three manufacturers in the West. In 2001, we began an initiative to
pioneer the market for scanners for personal
use in Japan by offering innovative entertain-
ment software based on scanner functions.
The image scanner industry is subject to rapid
changes and extreme competition, making
business success a difficult challenge. One
major player even opted to halt its scanner
operations during the year under review.

EE B T
Canon's laser beam printers contribute
to the business performance of SOHOs.
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Laser Beam and Bubble Jet Printers
Image Scanners

A major reason that Canon's operations remain prosperous is that we continue to
develop innovative technologies and upgrade our comprehensive lineup of desktop,
ultrathin notebook and film scanners. Our goal is to serve our customers as a
comprehensive scanner manufacturer.

Our revolutionary Bubble Jet
‘ technology brought high-quality

| color photo output out of the
developing lab and into the hands
of the user.




Sales results:
Business systems
(Millions of yen)

450,000

lo

429,882
391,586
351,076
314,859
306,323
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Business Machines

Business Systems

Smart marketing and innovative products advance the Canon brand in
the competitive global market for facsimile machines

gn

Canon's diverse lineup of “zcsiie meacrizzs, including dedicated ‘zser =22 and
2ucz.z /e models as well as multifunction facsimile machines sold under the

WU TERSE brand name, meet a wide range of user needs. Our laser beam models lead
the market in the United States, helped by a strong sales network. The introduction of
strategic new products with upgraded specifications helped reinforce our position in
2007. In Russia, Eastern Europe and other developing markets, our marketing activities
concentrate on promoting the shift from thermal transfer facsimile machines to our laser
beam and Bubble Jet models. Meanwhile, in Western Europe, demand is growing
steadily for flatbed multifunction facsimile machines in the small office/home office
(SOHO) market. Throughout our facsimile machines lines, we adhere to the policy of
introducing highly cost-competitive new products with superior functions as the means
to raise our market share.

[\)

Our long-selling handheld information terminals, sold under the -ancy Tzrminz!
name, are marketed primarily in Japan. Thanks to our introduction of new products with
industry-leading performance specifications, as well as improved durability and water
resistance, we were able to capture a dominant share of the market for general-purpose
terminals. Because we feel that it is vital to provide software solutions matched to cus-
tomer needs, we launched a strategic new model in 2001 with options for diverse appli-
cations. In addition, we are reinforcing our lineup of Handy Terminals with built-in bar-
code applications, which are particularly popular overseas. By continuing to accurately
reflect customer requirements in new product development, we will enhance the stand-

ing of our brand and increase market share in the future.

Sales of our cocument scznmers increased in almost every region around the world,
reflecting increased demand for the digitizing of office documents for sharing via the
Internet and intranet platforms, and digitizing data using OCR applications. The release
of two new scanners increased our share of the growing midrange segment, while con-
tinuing efforts to develop new sales channels advanced our share of the low-volume
production segment. The trend toward color document scanning in offices is accelerat-
ing, and we are tapping the potential of this
market with high-performance color products.

In our czicztor operations, we recorded our
best year of sales on record in the United States,
mostly owing to the introduction of high-value-
added models with original software and prod-
ucts designed for distribution through specific

sales channels. in Europe, where preparations We are launching innovative products for
the growing document scanner market.
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Facsimile Machines
and Other Business Machines

for the full-scale introduction of the euro continued throughout the year, we released a
full lineup of euro-compatible calculators, from desktop models to products with built-in
printers. Activities in the intensely competitive Japanese market centered on differentiat-
ing our products by offering models with distinctive software. In the market for electronic
dictionaries, we are maintaining our market status by enhancing our product line with
only high-value-added models.

Canon
e ¥
\—\\‘\»h
T P S0 P
[y

Multifunction facsimile machines
in our MultiPASS lineup meet the
needs of SOHOs, not only for
faxing, but also for high-quality
copying, printing and scanning.
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Sales results:
Cameras
(Millions of yen)

400,000

lo

273,126
318,234
381,367

245,618
263,474

I A A
87 98 98 00 O1

Cameras

Canon’s leading share of the global SLR camera market illustrates the
strength of camera operations

Digital cameras are beginning to encroach on the market for silver-halide sing e-ans
=7 e (SLR) cameras for professional use, but Canon's technological superiority and
intimate knowledge of the photography market continue to make it one of the
strongest players in the industry today. Responding to current market trends, in 2001
we launched a strategic new model in our world-famous =ZCS line, providing excellent
basic features at an attractive price, and released an upgraded version of another pop-
ular EOS camera. Backed by a powerful lineup of cameras to meet any photography
requirement, we will maintain and expand our SLR camara market share by imple-
menting marketing activities targeting specific sectors of the marketplace.

Our expertise in optics techno!ogies is helping us strengthen our dominant position in
the market for SLR camere ‘enses. In a bid to expand sales in 2001, we launched
the new L-series interchangeable E* ‘erses for EOS cameras. We also illustrated the
technological prowess that has g|ven us the edge in the lens market with the introduc-
tion of the E= £CCmm /4 DO [S USH, the world's first camera lens adopting our
Multi-Layer Diffractive Optical Element technology, which allows the development of
lighter, more compact lens units.

To raise our share of the compact camera market, we plan to begin introducing
smaller, attractively designed and affordable conventional and Advanced Photo System
compact cameras in 2002. In the longer term, we will fully reevaluate our operations,
from product planning and development to manufacturing and sales, to increase com-
petitiveness. We are also strengthening our presence in the People’s Republic of
China, which offers high potential for future growth.

Canon stands out in the bincculars industry for its products with image stabilizer (IS)
functions. In 2002, we plan to introduce models with a new IS system that is more
compact and less expensive than its predecessors. The new price range for these prod-
ucts will raise awareness of our IS binocular line, and help us win new market share.

On a unit basis, our sales of muitimedia
srejeciers in 2001 doubled the previous
year's result. Leading optics technologies,
including the world's first optical engine with a
clear prism, make for sharp and stunning visual
presentations. We are also setting ourselves
apart from the rest of the industry with ultra-
compact multimedia projectors for applications
in the home as well as the office.

Canon's ultracompact cameras for the
Advanced Photo System have become
a long-selling hit.
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SLR Cameras, Compact Cameras,
Lenses and Others

In Visual Communications System Operations, our cecument carneras are increasingly
being used in presentations requiring 3D imaging, which is why we are concentrating
development on high-resolution XGA products with affordable price tags. Taking full
advantage of the shift to network monitoring, which is in turn being fueled by the
diffusion of high-speed broadband communications, we are actively marketing our
Communication Cameras and Network Camera Servers to spur new demand.

Photographers from professionals
to hobbyists look to Canon for
innovative and easy-to-use SLR
cameras. We market SLRs to meet
any photography need in the world-
renowned EOS series.




Cameras

Canon leaps into the digital age with bold concepts that maximize the
potential of digital imaging

Canon has enhanced its lineup of digital carneras with products from the low to the
high end in order to take full advantage of rapid market expansion. As a result, our
sales increased in 2001 at a rate surpassing that of growth in the market itself,
which translated into a healthy increase in market share. For professional users, we
introduced a top-of-the-line new =0S-1D3 cigital SLR camera. The newest offering in
our popular PowerShot DIGITAL ZLPH J[\ju;r;; [XJS in other regions) series of
ultracompact digital cameras became an instant hit.

To bring the enjoyment of digital photography within easy reach of customers who
do not use PCs, we are actively promoting the revolutionary direct printing concept
In 2001, we marketed two new PcwerShot digital cameras that can be linked via

a cable to a specially designed Bubble Jet printer, which is also compatible with con-
ventional digital camera memory cards. With the goal of providing comprehensive
output solutions, we launched a card-sized printer designed specifically for outputting
digital photographs.

Canon's advantage in the competitive digital camera market lies in its ability to
incorporate top-quality functions and superb performance into products with unique,
practical and attractive designs. Keeping a close watch on trends in the industry and
the needs of users, we will continue to apply our strengths to shape the future

of digital imaging.

Digital is rapidly becoming the keyword in the market for vicec camcerders.

Canon prowdes a full lineup of digital video camcorders, and was able to S|gniﬂcantly
increase its unit-based shipments in 2001 through the launch of successful new prod-
ucts such as the XL7S, successor to the XL1, our long-selling digital video camcorder
targeting users at the high end of the market. We are determined to set ourselves
apart from the digital video camcorder competition by applying our leading optics
technologies not only to maximize image quality and lower costs, but also to develop
distinctive features and applications with the potential to stimulate new demand for our
products. Network compatibility, for example,
will add value to our digital video camcorders
in the era of broadband communications, and
we are also improving the still photography
functions of our products.

The Japanese video camcorder market, now
almost completely digital, is vital to our strategy
of becoming the world’s No.1 provider of

in the digital video camcorder market,
Canon is using technology to drive
business growth.
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Digital Cameras
Video Camcorders

digital video camcorders. Our immediate mission in this extremely competitive envi-
ronment is strengthening marketing activities while lowering costs. In the West, we are
stimulating the market for digital video camcorders with our comprehensive lineup of
models for all user needs. Asia has seen a boom in video camcorder demand in recent
years, and we will keep this region securely in our sights in future business development.

Combining our expertise in the
input and output of digital images,
we developed a system that links
our newest digital cameras
directly to a Bubble Jet printer,
removing the need for a PC.
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Sales results:
Optical products
(Millions of yen)

200000
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208,373
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Optical Products

Canon moves forward in the stepper market, as submicron precision
and compatibility with 300 mm wafers earn international acclaim

Canon raised its share of the global market for z7= 2227z, devices used to expose
circuits on silicon substrates in semiconductor production achieving increases in both
sales and income from these operations in 2001. We responded to sluggish conditions
in the marketplace by releasing innovative products and carrying out dynamic sales
initiatives to win new business. Our =% cz7'zc of excimer-laser steppers includes
durable models for existing types of semiconductors, as well as advanced models with
high-resolution exposures designed for producing the latest semiconductors and
performing R&D on new devices. In addition to the best in optics technologies, the FPA
series provides excellent productivity and cost performance.

i

Among our new offerings in 2001 was the ~=:-2ZCZZ=3Z, featuring high-resolution

S~

exposure and an ultralow aberration lens system, and the ==:-222243% with excel-
lent exposure precision at the 0.1 1-micron level and compatibility with the industry’s
newest 300 mm silicon wafer substrates. These proactive moves to revitalize the
otherwise sluggish market resulted in a large increase in sales on a unit basis, and
sustained our market share progress.

Although demand for semiconductors is sliding in accordance with the so-called
silicon cycle, the market will eventually make a comeback. Having scored a coup in
the current atmosphere of relatively slow demand, we are looking forward to a bright
future for our steppers. To ensure that we can take full advantage of demand when
the silicon cycle turns around once again, in 2001 we reinforced and expanded our
manufacturing capabilities. In other semiconductor production equipment activities,
we market mzs<z z=sin the =25 2=, These devices are used to produce
LCDs, and our model for large-sized LCD substrates sold particularly well in line with
increased demand for large flat panels for PC displays and LCD televisions.

Technological progress in the semiconductor industry occurs at a dizzying pace, and
stepper manufacturers must stay ahead of the current trends to prosper. With its immense
optics know-how, Canon holds a definite advantage that it will continue to exploit in
years to come. We have launched strategic . - .
research collaboration projects with German and ﬁa o

Japanese semiconductor/semiconductor pro-
duction equipment manufacturers to develop
steppers and semiconductor production process-
es using the next-generation F2 laser, capable
of ultrahigh-resolution exposure, which will
translate into denser circuit patterns and more
functionality on a single semiconductor chip.

o
‘ : S ]
Steppers that can handle 300 mm
wafers are the state of the art in
semiconductor production.
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Semiconductor Production
Equipment

s

oo ‘

Canon steppers integrate a variety
of the Group’s core technologies to
make possible the high-
performance semiconductor devices
that power the electronics
equipment of today and tomorrow.




Optical Products

Medical and
Broadcasting Equipment

CXDI-31 digital X-ray camera, complete with lightweight, thin cassette
system, creates new business opportunities

Through the years, Canon has continuously sought new and profitable applications of
its techno\ogtes Medical equipment is one such area of application, with our <’z
::a Fsystes at the forefront of digital imaging technology and czninzmic

Canon was the global pioneer of the fully digital radiography system, or ©z%-3272.
Zet2cizy as itis known in medical circles, and we operate at the top of the market
worldwide. Digital radiography provides a variety of benefits over conventional X-ray
cameras, mainly in terms of time and resource savings through the removal of the
photo developing process, and space savings because X-ray images are stored as digi-
tal image data in a computer server. These features, as well as Canon’s growing lineup
of digital radiography systems, are raising the competitiveness of our products over
those based on other technologles In addition to upright and horizontal-bed models,
in 2001 we marketed the T2 -27 Zighe Racicgrezoy Svsie, which uses a light-
weight, thin cassette. We are now working to strengthen our marketing organization,
introduce diverse types of systems and lower costs to maintain our top market share.

We have enhanced the field of ophthalmic instruments with our digital ophthalmic
system incorporating a ~c~ s w2lic rating. czmmare and our EOS D30 digital SLR
camera. The system also mcorporates an image data filing system, allowing optometrists
to easily store and access digital historical records for comparison. Favorable sales of
our distinctive system were reported in Japan, Europe and the United States. We
foresee other manufacturers entering the market in years to come, and are speeding
up both hardware and software development, as well as strengthening our service
capabilities to maintain our innovative edge.

Canon remains the world's largest provider of 7/ =-czcczs? 2mszs. Sales are expected
to pick up in the Americas and Europe in line with economic recovery in the United
States, while in Japan demand for high-definition TV (HDTV) lenses is steadily expand-
ing. Our marketing activities in Asia center on China, which shows high potential for
future growth. To stimulate market growth around the world, we will continue to develop
and actively market high-value-added broadcast lenses for every sector of the marketplace.

- " [—'Mﬂ\

ez eszce ontizs (ST is the futuristic term describing high-speed, wireless, line-
of-sight, point-to- pomt data transmission systems using optical beam technologies.
Canon markets a variety of FSO communication systems to meet diverse needs under
the 4V ZEZ4 brand name. Our in-house development of an innovative autotrack-
ing system provides CANOBEAM products with excellent signal transmission reliability.
The broadband age will present numerous new opportunities for FSO systems, which
is why Canon wili continue active product and marketing development in this field.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

GENERAL

The following discussion and analysis provides information that
management believes to be relevant to understanding Canon's
consolidated financial condition and result of operaticns. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Canon Inc. and Subsidiaries, including
the notes thereto, included in this Annual Report.

OVERVIEW

Canon is one of the world's leading manufacturers of plain
paper copying machines, laser beam printers, bubble jet
printers, cameras and steppers. Canon eams revenues mainly
from the manufacture and sale of these products domestically
and internationally.

On a consolidated basis, Canon divides its businesses into
three product groups: business machines, cameras and optical
and other products.

+ The business machine product group includes copying
machines, computer peripherals and business systems.
Copying machines include analog, digital, color and
personal models. Computer peripherals include mainly
laser beam printers, bubble jet printers and scanners.
Business systems include fax machines, micrographic
equipment, personal computers and calculators.

« The camera product group includes cameras, video
camcorders and digital cameras.

- The optical and other products product group
includes steppers and aligners for semiconductor chip
production, television broadcasting lenses and medical
equipment.

R&D expenditure
(Millions of yen)

Return on sales

585 200,000

170,793 l
176,967‘

177,922‘

Overseas operations are significant to Canon’s operating
results. Overseas operations generated 70.5% of our total net
sales in fiscal 2001. Such sales are denominated in the
applicable local currency and are subject to fluctuations in the
value of the yen in relation to such other currencies. Despite
efforts to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations on
operating results, including by localizing some manufacturing
and by procuring parts and materials from overseas suppliers,
Canon believes such fluctuations have had a significant effect
on our results of operations.

Cost of sales reflects principally the cost of raw materials and
labor used by Canon in the manufacture of its products. A
portion of the raw materials used by Canon is imported or
includes imported materials. Such raw materials are subject to
fluctuations in world market prices and exchange rates that may
affect Canon’s cost of sales. Other components of cost of sales
include depreciation expenses from plants, maintenance
expenses, light and fuel expenses and rent expenses.

The major components of selling, general and administrative
expenses are payroll, advertising expenses and sales promotion
expenses.

In the following discussion, certain reclassifications have
been made to the presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of previous years to conform to the presentation
used for the year ended December 31, 2001. For details of the
reclassifications, please refer to note (1)(u) to consolidated
financial statements, “Accounting for Sales Incentives”, on page
571, and note (1)(w) to consolidated financial statements,
"Reclassifications”, on page 53.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal 2001 compared with fiscal 2000

Canon recorded its second consecutive year of
record consolidated net sales and net income
mainly due to depreciation of the yen during fiscal
2001. In fiscal 2001, Canon achieved a 7.8% growth

in sales, to ¥2,907,573 million (U.5.$22,027 million),
and a 25.0% increase in net income, to ¥167,561
million (U.5.$1,269 million).

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
(Millions of yen (Thousands of US. dollars
except per except per
share amounts) share amounts)
2001 change 2000  change 1995 change 1998 2001
Net sales ¥2,907,573 +7.8% 2696420 +6.5% 25308396 -75% 2,736,084 22,027,068
Operating profit 281,839 +20.4 234,131 +39.1 168,344 -340 254,932 2,135,144
Income before income taxes 281,566 +23.9 227196 +45.6 156,072 -34.8 239,513 2,133,076
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle 133,030 <222 134,088 +903 70,234 -359 109,569 1,241,432
Net income 137,350 4232 134088 4909 70,234 -358 109,569 1,269,402
Earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:
Basic 187.07 +21.7 153,66 +90.5 80.66 -36.0 126.10 1.42
Diluted 184.55 +21.8 15151 4806 79.50 -359 12393 1.40
Net income:
Basic 191.29 +24.5 15366 4505 80.66 -36.0 126.10 1.45
Diluted 188.70 +24.5 15151 4806 7950 -358 12393 1.43

Sales

The global economy in 2001 reflected the following trends. The
U.S. economy showed a rapid downturn in the latter half of the
year, resulting from the continuing effects of the collapse of the
IT bubble combined with the negative economic impact of the
tragedy of September 11. In Europe, economic stagnation
intensified due to the weakened U.S. economy and throughout
Asia, with the exception of China, the economic climate was
also sluggish. The Japanese economy also remained stagnant,
reflecting flat consumer spending along with a decrease in
exports and [T-refated capital spending.

The markets in which the Canon Group operates reflected
the following trends. Within the IT-related equipment segment,
unfavorable consumer spending levels in Japan and the United
States resulted in reduced demand for personal-use printers
while corporate-use digital copying machines and printers
generally posted favorable results. The digital camera market
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continued to show strong growth, boosted by the launch of
several new products by digital camera makers, In the field of
semiconductor-preduction equipment, memory device
manufacturers continued to exercise restraint with regard to
capital expenditures, reflecting the lack of demand for memory
devices. The average value of the yen in 2001 was ¥122 to the
U.S. dollar, and ¥109 to the euro; a depreciation of 11% and
905, respectively, compared with the previous year.

Amid these conditions, Canon recorded 7.8% growth in
sales, to ¥2,907,573 million (U.5.$22,027 million). This growth
reflected increased sales of copying machines, digital cameras
and semiconductor production equipment offsetting decline in
other product lines. The lower value of the yen produced most
of the overall increase in sales. Using average 2000 exchange
rates, fiscal 2001 net sales would have increased 0.2% from
fiscal 2000.




Sales by product

Canon's sales by product group are summarized as follows:
Y

SALES BY PRODUCT
(Thousands of
(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars)
2001 change 2000 change 1999 change 1998 2001
Business machines:
Copying machines ¥ 891,814 +15.4% 772557 -159% 787,359 -65% 841,976 § 6,756,167
Computer peripherals 1,025,352 0.2 1022994 +90 938651 -96 1,038,760 7,767,818
Business systems 306,323 <=2.7 314,859 -103 351,076 -10.3 391,586 2,320,828
2,225,489 +5.4 2110410 +16 2077086 -86 2272322 16,844,614
Cameras 381,367 +19.8 318234 +165 273,126 +37 263474 2,889,744
Optical and other products 302,717 +13.0 267,776 +482 180,684 -98 200,288 2,283,510
Total ¥2,807,575 +7.8 2696420 +65 253089 -75 2,736,084 $22,027,068
Saies of business machines (copying machines, computer and white copying machines in the imageRUNNER (iR) series in
peripherals and business systems), constituting 76.5% of fiscal 2001 with the launch of the iR3300, iR105 and
consolidated net sales, increased 5.4%, to ¥2,223,483 million iIR1600/2000 machines, which followed the introduction of the
(US.816,845 million) in fiscal 2001. IR5000/6000 series the year before. The new lineup bolstered
Sales of copying machines (including digital color, office and  the competitive strength of Canon copiers and contributed to
personal models) increased 15.4%, to ¥891,814 million substantial growth within the black and white copying machine
(U.S.$6,756 million) in fiscal 2001 mainly due to an increase in segment. Strong performances by the CLC5000 and CLC1150
unit sales volume of high performance moedels. Canon color copying machines further supported growth in sales.

completed its lineup of 16 to 105 copy-per-minute digital black

Sales by product Sales by region
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)
Business Machines
Copying machines Japan
! Computer peripherals .
Business Systems Americas
[ Cameras —_ Europe
B Optical and other products 1 Cther areas
5000000 2907573 — 000,000 2907573 —
2669534 2736084 2696420 2669534 27608 9606420
*ﬁ | 2530836 ! 2,530,896

S . _
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Sales of computer peripherals (mainly laser beam printers,
bubble jet printers and scanners) increased 0.2%, to
¥1,025,352 million (U.5.$7,768 million). Unit sales of laser
beam printers and bubble jet printers declined slightly in the
U.S. and European markets despite the introduction of new
models. The lower value of the yen, however, offset the decline.

Sales of business systems (including facsimile machines,
computers, micrographics and calculators) decreased 2.7%; to
¥306,323 million (U.S.$2,321 million) in fiscal 2001 mainly
due to a decrease in unit sales volumes. This decrease reflected
the negative influence of severe price competition in the
facsimile market and declining PC sales in the domestic market,
partially offset by the impact of the decline in value of the yen.

Sales of cameras increased 19.8%, to ¥381,367 million
(U.5$2,889 million). While sales from 35mm and Advanced
Photo System camera sales declined in fiscal 2001, mainly due
to a decrease in the number of units sold caused by the
increasing popularity of digital models and price competition,
sales revenue from digital cameras nearly doubled compared
with the previous year primarily due to an increase in the
number of units sold. During the year, Canon launched six new
PowerShot-series digital camera models, spanning the range
from low-end to high-end, and two new ultracompact
PowerShot-DIGITAL ELPH-series (DIGITAL IXUS in other regions)
models. These eight new products succeeded in gamering
greater market share in terms of units sold for Canon and
contributed to increased revenues from digital camera sales.
Sales revenues from video camcorders also continued to show
substantial growth primarily due to an increase in the profitability
of these products, spurred by the introduction of such new
models as the high-end flagship XL-1S and ultra-compact Elura
10/20 (MV4 in ather regions). Cameras constituted 13.1% of
consolidated net sales in fiscal 2001.

Sales of optical and other products (including steppers and
aligners for semiconductor chip production, TV broadcasting
lenses, medical equipment and digital radiography systems)
increased 13.0%, to ¥302,717 million (U.5.$2,293 million).

Although the aggregate volume of orders from semiconductor
manufacturers declined, reflecting the sluggish memory device
market, sales revenue from optical and other products
continued to grow substantially in fiscal 2001 in terms of the
number of units sold, supported by active capital investment by
semiconductor device manufacturers through the end of fiscal
2000. After receiving order from a customer, there is usually
some lag time in order to complete the installation of
semiconductor production equipment. Canon expects that sales
revenue from semiconductor production equipment in 2002
will show major decline due to this lag based on the aggregate
volume of orders received in 2001. Additionally, the new FPA-
5000AS3 and FPA-5000ES3 scanning steppers were well
received by the industry and affected new customers for Canon.
Optical and other products constituted 10.4% of consolidated
net sales in fiscal 2001.

Sales by region
Net sales in fiscal 2001 increased in every area.

In Japan, overall sales revenue increased 6.1% in fiscal
2001. Sales in Japan of digital copying machines, digital
cameras and semiconductor production equipment grew
significantly primarily due to increased volume of such sales. In
the Americas net sales decreased 2.1% on a local currency
basis, though unit sales of digital copying machines and digital
cameras showed significant growth. However, after offsetting for
the depreciation of the yen, net sales in Americas increased by
10.4% in fiscal 2001. Sales in Europe showed growth of 6.4%
in fiscal 2001 primarily due to the depreciation of the yen and
an increase in sales volumes from digital copying machines,
digital cameras and semiconductor production equipment. Sales
in other areas increased 8.4% in fiscal 2001, reflecting
significant increases in sales volumes of digital cameras and
laser beam printers. In the forth quarter of 2001, net sales in all
regions showed a decrease on a local currency basis, reflecting
the weakened world economies and declined orders of
semiconductor equipment,

A summary of net sales by region is provided below:

SALES BY REGION
(Thousands of
(Millions of yen) U.S. dollars)
2001 change 2000 change 1999 change 1998 2001
Japan ¥ 827,288 46.1% 779366 +85% 718513 -058% 725063 $ 6,267,333
Americas 982,104 +10.4 889,764 +28 864,781 -10.0 960,892 7,440,182
Europe 806,104 6.4 757942 +28 737,140 -125 842,493 6,106,848
Other areas 292,077 +8.4 269348 +28.0 210462 +14 207,636 2,212,705
Total ¥2,907,573 +7.8 2696420 +65 2530896 -7.5 2736084  $22,027,068

Note: The region of sale is based on the location of the customer.
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Earnings

Operating profit in fiscal 2001 totaled ¥281,839 million
(U.S.$2,135 million), an increase of 20.4% from the previous
year. Operating profit in fiscal 2001 was 9.7% of net sales,
compared with 8.7% in fiscal 2000.

In fiscal 2001, the depreciation of the yen increased net
sales by approximately ¥206,000 million (U.S.$1,561 million)
and increased cost of sales by approximately ¥32,000 million
(U.S.8242 million). Canon's gross profit ratio during fiscal 2001
improved by 2.5% to 44.0%, primarily due to the net effect of
the depreciation of the yen, and also reflecting the positive
effects of cost reductions, realized through sustained production
reorganization activities, such as the adoption of cell production
methods, combined with the lower value of the yen.

Selling, general and administrative expenses rose 12.9%
from the previous year, and amounted to ¥998,775 million
(U.5.87,566 million). An increase in R&D expenses, resulting
from an increase in R&D activities, and sales promotional
expenses, resulting from an increase in promotional activities,
largely accounted for this increase. To strengthen its R&D
capabilities, Canon maintains a high level of R&D expenditure,
The depreciation of the yen also increased selling, general and
administrative expenses by approximately ¥36,500 million
(U.S.$277 million). In fiscal 2001, Canon reclassified its loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment to “Selling, general
and administrative expenses,” which had previously been
accounted for in "Other, net” of "Other income (deductions).”
Canon made this change due to the increase of the impact of
disposal of property, plant and equipment, as group
restructuring and resource allocation proceeds, and recurring
disposals are expected in the future, as well as to conform to
customary practice in the United States.

The disclosures of segment information by product as
required in Japan for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
fiscal 2000 are provided on page 35, and the disclosures of
segment information by geographic area as required in
Japan for the years ended December 31, 2001 and fiscal 2000
are shown on page 36.

Operating profit for business machines in fiscal 2001
increased ¥25,734 million (U.5.$195 million) to ¥334,918
million (U.5.$2,537 million). Operating profit ratio also improved
by 0.4% to 15.1%, reflecting the positive effect of the weak yen
and cost-cutting measures while sales prices were affected by
severe price competition in the market.

Operating profit for cameras increased ¥3,751 million
(U.S.$28 million) to ¥36,144 million (U.S.$274 million) due to
the rapid growth of digital models, while operating profit ratio
declined 0.7% to 9.5% mainly because of the sharp decrease
in unit sales of conventional film cameras.

Operating profit for optical and other products increased
¥13,202 million (U.S.$100 million) to ¥23,850 million
(U.S.8181 million). Operating profit ratio improved 3.0% to
5.7%, which was due primarily to a substantial sales volume
increase of semiconductor production equipment.

income before income taxes in fiscal 2001 was ¥281,566
million (U.5.$2,133 million), a 23.9% increase from fiscal 2000
and constituted 9.7% of net sales.

In the area of other income (deductions), the promotion of cash
flow management has resulted in increased financial strength,
realizing a ¥2,449 million (US$19 million) improvement in
interest income and expense. And on contribution of securities
to Canon’s retirement benefit trust Canon recognized a gain of
¥15,536 million (US$118 million). Currency exchange gains
and losses increased ¥5,394 million (US$41 million) while
Canon's share of the net earnings of companies carried at
equity declined by ¥12,662 million (US$96 million) due to the
deteriorating profit margins of affiliated companies in Singapore
that manufacture memory devices led by the sales price decline
in the market. As a result, other income (deductions) overall
increased ¥6,662 million (US$50 million) compared with the
previous year.

34




SEGMENT INFORMATION BY PRODUCT

Business Optical and ~ Corporate and
(Millions of yen) machines Cameras  other products Eliminations Consolidated
2007: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ¥ 2,223,489 381,367 302,717 - 2,907,573
Intersegment - - 116,748 (116,748) -
Total 2,223,489 381,367 £19,465 (116,748) 2,907,373
Operating cost and expenses 1,888,571 345,223 395,615 (3.675) 2,625,734
Operating profit ¥ 334,918 36,144 23,850 (173,073) 281,839
Assets ¥ 1,280,949 215,173 361,799 986,835 2,844,756
Depreciation and amortization 105,907 12,745 15,297 18,357 152,300
Capital expenditure 121,333 16,871 36,057 33,413 207,674
2000: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ¥ 2110410 318234 267,776 - 2,696,420
Intersegment — - 126,947 (126,947) -
Total 2,110410 318234 394,723 (126947) 2,696,420
Operating cost and expenses 1,801,226 285841 384,075 (8,853) 2,462,289
Operating profit ¥ 309,184 32,393 10,648 (118,094) 234,131
Assets : ¥ 1324369 207069 332,229 968458 2,832,125
Depreciation and amortization 101,557 14,480 13,019 17,421 146,477
Capital expenditure 105,171 15,559 20,509 29,747 170,986
1999:  Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ¥ 2077086 273126 180,684 - 2,530,896
Intersegment - - 79413 (75,413) -
Total 2,077,086 273,126 260,097 (79413) 2,530,896
Operating cost and expenses 1,820,341 254,799 274172 13,240 2,362,552
Operating profit ¥ 256745 18327  (14075) (92,653) 168,344
Assets ¥ 1256667 155204 252071 923,590 2,587,532
Depreciation and amortization 114,451 12,285 12,860 18,515 158,111
Capital expenditure 143,269 12,880 17,856 26,381 200,386
Business Optical and ~ Corporate and
(Thousands of U.S. dollars) machines Cameras  other products Eliminations Consclidated
2001: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers $16,864,614 2,889,144 2,293,310 = 22,027,068
Intersegment - - B34435 (BB4,455) -
Total 16,844,614 2,889,144 3,177,765 (BB4,455) 22,027,068
Operating cost and expenses 14,307,356 2,615,326 2,997,083 (27.841) 19,891,924
Operating profit $ 2,537,258 273,818 180,682 (B856,614) 2,135,144
Assels $ 9,704,159 1,630,098 2,740,902 7,476,023 21,551,182
Depreciation and amortization 802,326 96,553 115,841 139,068 1,153,788
Capital expenditure 919,189 127,811 273,159 253,129 1,573,288
Notes:

1 General corporate expenses of ¥113,128 million (U.5.$857,030 thousand), ¥118,180 million and ¥92,637 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, are

included in “Corporate and Eliminations.”

2 Corporate assets of ¥386,801 million (U.S.87,475,765 thousand), ¥968,590 million and ¥923,863 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, which mainly
consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and corporate properties, are included in “Corporate and Eliminations.”
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SEGMENT INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Corporate and

(Millions of yen) Japan Americas Europe Others Eliminations Consolidated
2001: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ¥ 858,580 983,561 805,243 260,139 - 2,907,373
Intersegment 1,378,051 17,475 2,449 299,410 (1,697,365) -
Totzl 2,236,611 1,001,036 807,692 559,599 (1,697,365) 2,907,573
Operating cost and expenses 1,893,448 969,630 806,495 546,281 (1,590,130) 2,625,734
Qperating profit 343,163 37,406 1,197 13,308 (107,23%5) 281,839
Assels ¥1,576,939 346,046 423,295 174,553 523,923 2,844,756
2000: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ¥ 8327297 889,377 753,979 220,767 —  2695,420
Intersegment 1,345,983 11,748 3,782 246,024 (1,607,537) -
Total 2,178,280 901,125 757,761 466,791 (1,607,537) 2,696,420
Operating cost and expenses 1,868,472 871,298 742576 456,278 (1,476,335) 2,462,289
Operating profit 309,808 29,827 15,185 10513 (131,202) 234,131
Assets ¥ 1,482,335 353,919 407,258 158,729 429884 2,832,125
1999: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ¥ 754208 864,080 732,053 180,555 — 2,530,896
Intersegment 1,205,021 14,468 3,645 179,527 (1,402,661) -
Total 1,959,229 878,548 735,698 360,082 (1,402,661) 2,530,896
Operating cost and expenses 1,761,544 850,400 722,147 349,623 (1,321,162) 2,362,552
Operating profit 197,685 28,148 13,551 10,459 (81,499) 168,344
Assets ¥ 1,328,376 298,624 338,630 138,251 483651 2,587,532
Corporate and
(Thousands of U.S. dollars) Japan Americas Europe Others Eliminations Consolidated
2001: Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers § 6,504,394 7,451,220 6,100,326 1,971,128 — 22,027,088
Intersegment 10,439,629 132,386 18,553 2,268,258 (12,858,826) -
Total 16,944,023 7,583,606 6,118,879 4,239,386 (12,858,826) 22,027,068
QOperating cost and eUPEenses 14,344,303 7,345,682 6,109,811 4,738,568 (12,046,44C) 19,891,924
Operating profit 2,599,720 237,924 9,063 100,818  (812,386) 2,135,144
Assels $10,431,356 2,621,561 3,206,780 1,322,371 3,969,114 21,551,182

Notes:

1 General corporate expenses of ¥113,128 million (U.S.$857,030 thousand), ¥118,180 million and ¥92,637 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, are
included in "Corporate and Eliminations.”
2 Corporate assets of ¥986,801 million (U.S.$7,475,765 thousand), ¥368,590 million and ¥923,863 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, which mainly

consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and corporate properties, are included in “Corporate and Elirminations.”

3 Segment information by geographic area is determined by the location of the company (Canon or its subsidiaries).
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Net income in fiscal 2001 was ¥167,561 million (U.S.$1,269
million), an increase of 25.0% from the previous year. This
amount represents a 5.8% return on net sales. Income taxes as
a percent of income before income taxes rose by 2.5% to
40.9%. The increase was largely attributable to decreased
equity in income of affiliates.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSACTIONS

Canon's marketing activities are performed by subsidiaries in
each region in local currencies, while the cost of goods sold is
generally in yen. Given Canon’s current operating structure,
appreciation of the yen has a negative impact on net sales and
the gross profit ratio. To reduce the financial risks from changes
in foreign exchange rates, Canon utilizes derivative financial
instruments, which are comprised principally of forward currency
exchange contracts.

The return on foreign operation sales is usually lower than
domestic operations because foreign operations consist mainly
of marketing activities. The returns on foreign operation sales in
fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1998 were 1.6%, 2.0% and 1.9%,
respectively. This compares with return of 5.8%, 5.0% and
2.8% on total operations for the respective years.

LLQUIBITY
Cash and cash equivalents in fiscal 2001 increased ¥12,272
million (U.5.$93 million) to ¥506,234 million (U.5.$3,835
million), compared with ¥493,962 million in 2000 and
¥480,453 million in 1999.

Despite the large increase in net income and significant
reduction of inventories, net cash provided by operating
activities for 2001 decreased to ¥305,752 million (US$2,316
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million), compared with ¥346,616 million in 2000 and
¥308,917 million in 1999, mainly due to the increased
payment of trade payables.

Net cash used in investing activities for 2001was ¥192,592
million (US$1,453 million), compared with ¥212,804 million in
2000 and ¥200,982 million in 1999.

Net cash used in financing activities for 2001 amounted to
¥121,228 million (US$518 million), mainly as a result of
repayment of short-term loans to improve Canon's financial
position, accompanied by the redemption of bonds, compared
to ¥100,597 million in 2000 and ¥122,823 million in 1999.
Although ameliorated by interest swap agreements, Canon is
exposed to the market risk of interest rate fluctuations, primarily
due to variable interest rate debt obligations. An increase in
interest rates would increase expenditures required to service
these debt obligations.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital expenditure in 2001 amounted to ¥207,674 million
(U.S.$1,573 million) compared with ¥170,986 million in 2000
and ¥200,386 million in 1999. In 2001, mzjor capital
expenditure included mainly the construction of a new
corporate headquarters office and the expansion of
manufacturing facilities to enable increased production of
semiconductor production equipment.

At December 31, 2001, Canon had outstanding
commitments of approximately ¥51,446 million (U.5.$390
million) to purchase property, plant and equipment for use in
the ordinary course of its business. Canon anticipates that funds
needed to fulfill these commitments will be generated internally
through operations.

Return on stochholder's equity
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_
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Working capital in 2001 increased ¥79,502 million
(U.5.$602 million), to ¥776,111 million (U.5.$5,880 million),
compared with ¥696,609 million in 2000 and ¥609,730
million in 1999. The increase was primarily attributable to the
decrease of short-term loans and trade payables. Canon
believes its working capital is sufficient for its present
requirements.

The working capital ratio (current assets to current
liabilities) for 2001 was 1.91, compared with 1.71 for 2000
and 1.70 for 1999.

Return on assets rose to 5.9% in 2001, compared with
4.9% in 2000 and 2.6% in 1999. This increase was due
mainly to increased net income. Return on stockholders’
equity also rose to 12.2% in 2001, compared with 10.7% in
2000 and 6.0% in 1999.

The debt ratio (total debt to totel assets) declined to 10.4% in
2007 from 13.8% in 2000.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPIMENT, PATENTS AND
LICENSES

Research and development (R&D) is an important aspect of
Canon's operations. Canon believes that the competitiveness
and excellence of its products can be attributed primarily to its
research and development activities.

Canon employs approximately 7,300 R&D engineers and
scientists who are involved in the fields of precision mechanics,
electronics, optics, applied physics and organic and inorganic
chemistry. Canon had research and development expenditures
of ¥218,616 million (US$1,656 million) in fiscal 2001,
¥194 552 million in fiscal 2000 and ¥177,922 million in fiscal
1999. Canon'’s strategy emphasizes the application of advanced
technologies to competitive new products, the improvement of
manufacturing techniques and basic research for the future.

Canon's R&D activities are conducted at following five
primary centers.

+ Core Technology Development Headquarters (where
component engineering and base technology R&D, such
as in new materials, nanotechnology and production
engineering, is conducted)

« Platform Technology Development Headquarters (where
platform technologies for digital network device R&D is
conducted)

+ Device Technology Development Headquarters (where .
key device R&D, such as for semiconductor devices, is
conducted)

» Display Development Headquarters (where display devices
R&D is conducted)

« Ecology Research Center (where solar cell battery R&D is
conducted)

In addition, Canon maintains R&D centers for each of its
product divisions.

Canon generates a significant number of patented
innovations every year. The ownership of patents is important to
Canon, but Canon does not believe that the expiration of any
single patent or group of related patents will materially affect its
business.

MARKET RISK WANAGEMENT

Canon is exposed to market risks, including changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and prices of marketable securities
and marketable investments. In order to hedge the risks of
changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates, Canon
uses derivative financial instruments.

Equity Price Risk
Canon holds marketable securities and marketable investments
included in current assets for short-term investment. In general,
highly-liquid and low-risk instruments are preferred in the
portfolio. Marketable securities and marketable investments
included in noncurrent assets are held as longer-term
investments. Canon does not hold marketable securities and
marketable investments for trading purposes.

Maturities and fair values of such marketable securities and
marketable investments were as follows at December 31,
2001.

Thousands of
Millions of yen US. dollars

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

Due within one year ¥ 3,824 3883 % 28970 29417

Due after one year through
five years 2,074 2,387 15,712 18,083
Due after five years 5516 5550 41,788 42,046
Equity securities 7438 12363 56348 93,659
¥ 18,852 24,183 $142,818 183,205

Foreign Exchange Rates and Interest Rates Risk
Canon operates internationally and is therefore exposed tc the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
Canon and certain of its subsidiaries utilize various derivative
financial instruments, principally foreign exchange contracts and
interest rate swaps, to reduce these risks. Canon assesses the
risks of foreign currency exchange and interest rates by
continually monitoring changes in its exposure to these risks and
by evaluating hedging opportunities. Canon does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
Canon is also exposed to credit-related losses in the event of
non-performance by counterparties to derivative financial
instruments, but it is not expected that any counterparties will
fail to meet their obligations, because most of the counterparties
are internationally recognized financial institutions and the
contracts are diversified among a number of major financial
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institutions.

The major manufacturing bases of Canon are located in
Japan and Asia. The sales generated from overseas are mainly
denominated in U.S. dollar or Euro. Therefore, Canon's
international operations expose Canon to the risk of changes in
foreign currency exchange rate. To manage foreign exchange
exposure from sales in foreign currencies such as U.S. dollars
and Euro, Canon enters into foreign exchange contracts, which it
uses to manage certain foreign currency exchange exposures
principally from the exchange of U.S. dollar and Euro into
Japanese yen. These contracts are primarily used to hedge the
foreign currency exposure of forecasted intercompany sales
which are denominated in foreign currencies. In accordance
with Canon'’s policy, a specific portion of foreign currency
exposure resulting from forecasted intercompany sales are
hedged using foreign exchange contracts which principally
mature within three months.

The following table provides information about Canon's
major derivative financial instruments related to foreign currency
exchange transactions existing at December 31, 2001 together
with the related weighted average contractual exchange rates at
December 31, 2001. All of the foreign exchange contracts
described in the following table have a contractual maturity date
in 2002.

Millions of yen
(except average contractual rates)

US$/Yen euro/Yen Others Total

¥ 117579 115405 17904 250,888
(7.414) (5384) (701)

Forwards to sell foreign currencies:

Contract amounts
Estimated fair value
(13,499)

Average contractual rates

12098 10935

Thousands of U.S. dollar
US$/Yen euro/Yen Others Total

Fowards to sell foreign currencies:

Contract amounts $ 890,750 874,280 135,637 1,900,667
Estimated fair value (56,167) (40,788) (5310)
(102,265)

Canon's exposure to the market risk of changes in interest
rates relates primarily to its debt obligations. Fixed-rate debt
obligations expose Canon to variability in their fair values due to
changes in interest rates. To manage the variability in the fair
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values caused by interest rate changes, Canon enters into
interest rate swaps when it is determined to be appropriate
based on market conditions. Interest rate swaps change fixed-
rate debt obligations to variable-rate debt obligations by entering
into receive-fixed, pay-variable interest rate swaps. The hedging
relationship between interest rate swaps and hedged debt
obligations is highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in
fair values resulting from interest rate risk.

The information about Canon’s derivative financial
instruments and other financial instruments that are sensitive to
changes in interest rates are shown on page 40. For debt
obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and related
weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. For
interest rate swaps, the table presents notional principal
amounts and weighted average interest rates by expected
maturity dates. Notional principal amounts are used to calculate
the contractual payments to be exchanged under the contracts.
The table presents information for obligations existing at
December 31, 2001 together with the related weighted average
contractual interest rates at December 31, 2001.

Derivative financial instruments designated as fair value
hedges principally relate to interest rate swaps associated with
fixed rate debt obligations. Changes in fair values of the hedged
debt obligations and derivative instruments designated as fair
value hedges of these debt obligations are recognized in other
income (deductions). There is no hedging ineffectiveness or net
gains or losses excluded from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness for the year ended December 31, 2001 as the
critical terms of the interest rate swaps match the terms of the
hedged debt obligations.

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange contracts
designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges of forecasted
intercompany sales are reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). These amounts are subsequently
reclassified into earnings through other income (deductions) in
the same period as the hedged items affect earnings. Alf the
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at end of year
are substantially expected to be recognized in earnings over the
next twelve months. Canon excludes the time value component
of the hedging instruments from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness.




LONG-TERM DEBT (including due within one year)

(Millions of yen)

Expected maturity date

Average interest Estimated
rates Total 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Thereafter  Fair Value
Japanese yen notes 226% ¥ 92479 37559 5,820 20,000 5,000 — 20,000 96,436
Japanese yen convertible
debentures 1.21% 18,845 3,825 - - 5172 - 9548 57,020
Loans, principally from banks 3.93% 37,850 16,189 10546 5202 1,570 433 3910 36,121
Total ¥ 149274 57573 20,466 25202 11,742 433 33858 188,577
INTEREST RATE SWAP {Millions of yen)
Notional principal ~ Average receive  Average pay Expected maturity date Estimated
amount {million) rate rate Total 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Thereafter  Fair Value
¥ 20,000 260% -003% ¥ 20,000 20,000 - - - - - 575
Usg 476 5.34% 1.98% 62,871 9123 19250 34,438 - - - (1,463
LONG-TERM DEBT {including due within one year} (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Average interest Expected matuity dete Estimated
rates Total 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Thereafter  Fair Value
Japanese yen notes 2.26% $ 700,58% 284,538 75,152 151,515 37,879 — 151,515 730,576
Japanese yen convertible
debentures 1.21% 143,524 28977 — — 39,182 — 75365 431,970
Loans, principally from banks 3.93% 286,741 122,644 79,894 39,409 11,894 3280 29620 273645
Total $1,130,854 436,159 155,046 190,924 88,955 3,280 256,500 1,436,191
INTEREST RATE SWAP (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Notional principal ~ Average receive  Average pay Expected maturiy date Estimated
amount (million) rate rate Total 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Thereafter  Fair Value
¥ 20,000 260% -0.03% § 157,515 151,515 — — - - - 4,356
Usg 476 5.34% 1.98% 475,841 69,114 145,833 260,894 - - — (11,083)

REGARDING THE ENVIRONMENT

Canon is not aware of any sites that may have an adverse
material effect on its liquidity, financial position or results of
operations. It is difficult to estimate future environmental
expenditure because of the many uncertainties involved,
including the future status of the law, regulations, technology
and information. Nevertheless, Cancn believes that capital
expenditure and expenses incurred in complying with current
laws for environmental protection will not have a material effect
upon its liquidity, financial position or results of operations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, and based on the selection and application of
significant accounting policies, which require management to
make significant estimates and assumptions. Canon believes
that the following are some of the more critical judgment areas

in the application of its accounting policies that currently affect
its financial condition and results of operations.

Collectibility of Receivablies

Canon is required to estimate the collectibility of its notes
receivables and accounts receivables. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realization of
these receivables including the current creditworthiness of each
customer. Significant changes in required reserves have been
recorded in recent periods and may occur in the future due to
the current market environment,

Deferred Tax Assets

Canon currently has significant deferred tax assets, which are
subject to periodic recoverability assessments. Realization of
Canon's deferred tax assets is principally dependent upon its
achievement of projected future taxable income. Canon'’s
judgments regarding future profitability may change due to
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future market conditions, its ability to continue to successfully
execute our operating restructuring activities and other factors.
These changes, if any, may require possible material
adjustments to these deferred tax asset balances.

Recoverability of Long-lived Assets

Canon's long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
drcumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used
is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.
If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to
be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceed the fair value of the assets. Assets
to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell. The determination of
estimated future net cash flows involves significant judgments.
Changes in strategy and/or market conditions could significantly
impact these judgments and require adjustments to recorded
asset balances.

Employee Retirement and Severance Benefit Plan
Canon has significant employee retirement and severance
benefit costs and credits which are developed from actuarial
valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions
including discount rates and expected return on plan assets.
Canon is required to consider current market conditions,
including changes in interest rates, in selecting these
assumptions. Changes in the related employee retirement and
severance benefit costs or credits may occur in the future in
addition to changes resulting from fluctuations in Canon's
related headcount due to changes in the assumptions.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Canon Group is pursuing the goals set forth in Phase Il of
the Excellent Global Corporation Plan (2001-2005). Canon will
push forward with its operating reorganization efforts, from R&D
and production to head office administrative operations,
simultaneously targeting improved productivity and the
elimination of waste, along with the development and
strengthening of common basic technologies in support of
product development to facilitate the launch of advanced high
value-added products ahead of its competition. Efforts will also
be focused on the in-house production of key components, key
parts and high-efficiency factory automation equipment to
realize even greater cost reductions. In marketing activities,
Canon is working to expand and strengthen its solutions
business and is promoting the optimization of distribution
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channels and back-office operations. Aiso, as the importance of
environmentally conscious products continues to increase,
progress is being made in the development of a technological
infrastructure to support the design of such products.

Canon sells laser beam printers on an original equipment
manufacturing (OEM) basis to Hewlett-Packard Co. (HP). During
the year ended December 31, 2001, such sales constituted
approximately 2 1% of consolidated net sales.

In September 2001, HP proposed a business combination
with Compag Computer Co. HP's special shareholders meeting
to approve this proposed combination will be held on March
19, 2002. Although the business combination has not been
concluded yet, we believe that if concluded it will not directly
affect in an adverse and material way our OEM business.
However, our operating results could be significantly and
adversely affected if HP's management decides not to continue
its OEM business relationship with Canon.

On January 31, 2002, Canon Inc. and Canon Components,
Inc. (CCl) executed a memorandum of understanding to make
CCl a wholly-owned subsidiary of Canon through a share
exchange, following resolutions by their respective board of
directors’ meetings. CCl is already a consolidated subsidiary of
Canon, and therefore the impact of the share exchange on
Canon's future consolidated business results is not expected to
be material.

The foregoing discussion in Financial Overview contains
forward-looking statements that reflect management's current
views with respect to certain future events and financial
performance. Actual results may differ materially from those
projected or implied in the forward-locking statements. Further,
certain forward-looking statements are based upon assumptions
of future events that may not prove to be accurate. The
following important factors could cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected or implied in any forward-
looking statements: exchange rate fluctuations; the uncertainty
of Canon’s ability to implement its plans to localize production
and other measures to reduce the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations; uncertainty as to economic condition in Canon's
major markets; uncertainty of continued demand for Canon's
high-value-added products; uncertainty in the continued growth
of computer and related markets; uncertainty of increased
demand for Canon’s semiconductor production equipment;
Canon’s ability to continue to develop products and to market
products that incorporate new technology on a timely basis, are
competitively priced and achieve market acceptance; the
possibility of losses resulting from foreign currency transactions
designed to reduce financial risks from changes in foreign
exchange rates; and inventory risk due to shifts in market
demand.




TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(Millions of yen except per share amounts)

2001 2000 1999 1998
Net sales:
Domestic ¥ 827,288 779,366 718513 725,063
Overseas 2,080,285 1,917,054 1,812,383 2,011,021
Total 2,807,573 2,696,420 2,530,896 2,736,084
Percentage of
previous year 107.8% 106.5 925 102.5
Net income 167,561 134,088 70,234 109,569
Percentage of sales 5.8% 50 2.8 4.0
Advertising 66,837 67,840 67,544 76,911
Research and development 218,616 194,552 177,922 176,967
Depreciation 147,286 144,043 155,682 159,888
Capital expenditure 207,674 170,986 200,386 221,401
Long-term debt, excluding current installments 95,526 142,925 165,277 180,320
Stockholders’ equity 1,458,476 1,298,514 1,202,003 1,155,520
Total assets 2,844,756 2,832,125 2,587,532 2,728,329
Per share data:
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:
Basic 187.07 153.66 80.66 126.10
Diluted 184.55 151.51 79.50 12393
Net income:
Basic 191.29 153.66 80.66 126.10
Diluted 188.70 151.51 79.50 12393
Cash dividends dedared 25.00 21.00 17.00 17.00
Stock price:
High 5,530 5,620 4200 3,400
Low 5,150 3,400 2,170 1,930
Average number of common shares in thousands 875,960 872,606 870,699 868,016
Number of employees 93,620 86,673 81,009 79,798

Common stock price range
(Yen)
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1997

1896

1995

1994

1993

1992

(Thousands of U.S, dollars
except per share amounts)
2001

811,455 784917 677,692 596,564 536,853 537,308 $ 6,267,333
1,858,079 1,687,920 1,408,186 1,266,160 1236308 1316571 15,759,735
2,669,534 2,472,837 2,085,878 1,862,724 1,773,161 1,853,879 22,027,068

1080 118.6 112.0 105.1 95.6 1024 107.8
118813 94,177 55,036 31,024 21,102 35621 1,269,402
45 338 26 1.7 1.2 1.9 5.8
75,800 68,354 53,033 44,698 42,468 57,723 506,341

170,793 150,085 125,253 121,273 104,191 100,521 1,656,182

137,777 117,263 104,474 103,304 100,631 96,376 1,115,803

219,779 176,357 123,560 133,068 151,808 149,014 1,573,288

226,889 192,254 298,055 311,002 430,285 285377 723,682
1,109,511 1,007,434 880,150 808,985 721411 708,454 11,049,061
2,872,779 2,644,452 2,506,152 2270010  2,165370 2,163,291 21,551,182

137.73 111.29 65.96 3850 2701 4709 1.42
134.60 105.96 62.73 3584 2676 46.46 1.40
137.73 111.29 65.96 38.50 2701 47.09 1.45
134.60 106.96 62.73 35.84 26.76 46.46 1.43
17.00 15.00 13.00 1250 12,50 1250 0.19
3,820 2,630 1,940 1,820 1,560 1,470 £40.38
2,280 1,780 1,230 1,530 1,270 1,200 23.86
862,664 846,224 834,329 805,897 781261 756,497
78,767 75,628 72,280 67,672 64,535 64,512

Notes:

1. US. dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥132=US$1, the

approximate exchange rate on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of
December 28, 2001,

2. Canon adopted new accounting standards for sales incentives, and applied
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retroactively to the consolidated financial statements for the prior years.




CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

December 31, 2001 and 2000

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (note 2)

2001 2000 2003

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 508,234 493,962 $ 3,835,105
Marketable securities (note 4) 6,772 10,943 36,15
Trade receivables (notes 5 and 8) 456,635 479,790 3,459,356
Inventories (notes 6 and 8) 448,300 490,693 3,386,212
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (note 11) 274,353 196,011 1,623,886
Total current assets 1,630,284 1,671,399 12,353,712
Noncurrent receivables and restricted funds (note 19) 21,125 27,626 163,038
Investments (notes 4 and 8) 66,168 119,185 501,273
Net property, plant and equipment (notes 7 and 8) 821,725 771,594 6,220,644
Other assets (notes 10 and 11) 306,044 242,311 2,318,373
Total assets 2,864,756 2,832,125 $27,5517,182
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans (note 8) ¥ 200,104 248,688 $ 1,513,939
Trade payables (note 9) 354,646 444,633 2,685,197
Income taxes (note 11) 65,324 53,865 494,879
Accrued expenses 157,335 164,484 1,181,932
Other current liabilities (note 11) 76,974 63,120 583,136
Total current liabilities 854,183 974,790 6,471,083
Long-term debt, excluding current installments (note 8) ©3,526 142,925 723,682
Accrued pension and severance cost (note 10) 237,537 194,445 1,769,523
Other noncurrent liabilities (note 11) 17,645 22,838 133,674
Total liabilities 1,204,397 1,334,998 9,127,862
Minority interests 181,389 198,213 1,374,159
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock
Authorized 2,000,000,000 shares;
issued 876,282,332 shares in 2001
and 875,627,023 shares in 2000 (notes 8 and 12) 165,287 164,796 ".252,174
Additional paid-in capital (notes 8 and 12) 392,456 391,939 2,973,152
Legal reserve (note 13) 38,330 35,584 290,379
Retained earnings (notes 11 and 13) 997,848 853,177 7,559,454
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
(notes 4,10, 11, 15 and 18) (133,168) (146,582) (7,024,000}
Treasury stock, at cost 63,889 shares in 2001 (277) - (2,29%)
Total stockholders' equity 1,458,476 1298914 11,049,061
Cemmitments and contingent liabilities (note 19)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ¥2,844,756 2,832,125 $21,551,182

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (note 2)
2001 2000 1999 2001
Net sales ¥ 2,907,573 2,696,420 2,530,856 $ 22,027,058
Cost of sales 1,626,959 1,577,467 1,497,940 12,325,447
Gross profit 1,280,614 1,118,959 1,032,956 9,701,621
Selling, general and administrative expenses 998,775 884,828 864,612 7,568,477
Operating profit 281,839 234,131 168,344 2,135,544
Other income (deductions):
Interest and dividend income 9,571 11,428 10,222 72,508
Interest expense (10,712) (15,018) (20,356) (81,152)
Other, et 363 (3,345) (2,138) 6,576
(273) (6,935) (12,272) (2,068)
income before income taxes and minority interests 281,566 227196 156,072 2,133,076
Income taxes (note 11) 115,154 87,197 83,939 872,379
Income before minority interests 166,412 139,999 72,133 1,260,697
Minority interests 2,543 5911 1,899 19,265
Income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle 163,869 134,088 70,234 1,241,632
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of
tax (note 1(0)) 3,692 - - 27,970
Net income ¥ 167,561 134,088 70,234 $ 1,269,402
Yen US. dollars (note 2)
Earnings per share (notes 1(q) and 16):
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:
Basic ¥ 187.07 153.66 80.66 $ 1.42
Diluted 184.55 151.51 79.50 1.40
Net income:
Basic ¥ 190.29 153.66 80.66 $ 1.45
Diluted 188.70 151.51 79.50 1.45
Dividends per common share (note 13) ¥ 25.00 21.00 17.00 $ 0.19

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (note 2)
2001 2000 1999 2001
Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 164,796 163,969 163,033 § 1,248,454
Conversion of convertible debt (notes 12 and 14) 491 668 936 3,720
Share issued for acquisition of mincrity interests
(notes 12 and 14) - 159 - -
Balance at end of year 165,287 164,796 163,969 1,252,174
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of year 391,939 376,848 375913 2,869,235
Conversion of convertible debt and other (notes 12 and 14) 517 661 935 3,917
Share issued for acquisition of minority interests
(notes 12 and 14) - 14,430 - -
Balance at end of year 392,456 391,939 376,848 2,973,152
Legal reserve:
Balance at beginning of year 35,584 33518 31,396 269,576
Transfers from retained earnings (note 13) 2,746 2,066 2,122 20,803
Balance at end of year 38,330 35,584 33518 290,379
Retained eamings:
Balance at beginning of year 853,177 735975 682,663 6,463,462
Net income for the year 167,561 134,088 70,234 1,269,402
Cash dividends (note 13) (20,744)  (14,820) (14,797) (152,607)
Transfers to legal reserve (note 13) (2,746) (2,066) (2,122) (20,803)
Other - - (3) -
Balance at end of year 997,848 853177 735,975 7,559,454
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
(notes 4, 10, 11, 15 and 18)
Balance at beginning of year (146,582) (108,307) (97,485) (1,110,469)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year,
net of tax 11,414 (38,275) (10,822) 86,469
Balance at end of year (135,068) (146,582) (108,307 (1,024,000)
Treasury stock:
Balance of begining of year - - - -
Purchase (277) - - (2,098)
Balance at end of year (277) - — (2,098)
Total stockholders” equity Y 1,458,476 1298914 1,202,003 $11,049,061
Disclosure of comprehensive income:
Net income for the year ¥ 167,561 134,088 70,234 § 1,269,402
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year,
net of tax (note 15) 1,416 (38275  (10,822) 86,469
Total comprehensive income for the year ¥ 178,975 95,813 59,412 % 1,355,871

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars (note 2)
2001 2000 1999 2001
Net income ¥ 167,561 134,088 70,234 $ 1,269,402
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 152,300 146,477 158,111 1,153,783
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 20,323 14,080 8814 153,962
Gain on securities contributed to retirement benefit trust
(notes 4 and 10) (15,536) - - (117,697)
Deferred income taxes 2,172 (10,280) (5,972) 16,455
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 47,864 (52,751) (1,231) 362,455
Decrease (increase) in inventories 73,858 (27,884) 107913 559,530
Increase (decrease) in trade payables (161,157) 100,588 (22,950) (1,220,886)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes 10,561 6917 (13,966) 80,008
Increase in accrued expenses 2,177 21,343 3,206 16,492
Other, net 5,649 14,038 4,758 42,794
Net cash provided by operating activities 305,752 346,616 308917 2,316,303
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure (207,674) (170,986) (200,386) (1,573,288)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10,224 5,752 6,104 77,455
Payment for purchase of marketable securities (9,225) (3,082) (12,349) (6%,886)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 9,473 2,428 6,637 71,765
Payment for purchase of investments (2,452) (14,702) (9,770) (18,576)
Other 7,062 (32214) 8,782 53,500
Net cash used in investing activities (192,592) (212,804) (200,982) (1,459,030)
Cash flows from financing activities (note 14):
Proceeds from long-term debt 7,417 17,358 23,811 56,189
Repayment of long-term debt (40,423) (32,529) (75,005) (306,235)
Decrease in short-term loans (64,292) (67,923)  (51,871) (487,061)
Dividends paid (note 13) (20,144) (14,820) (14,797) (152,607)
Other (3,786) (2,683) (4,961) (28,680)
Net cash used in financing activities (121,228)  (100,597) (122,823) (918,394)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 20,340 (19,706) (3,841) 154,091
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 12,272 13,509 (18,729) 92,970
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 493,962 480,453 499,182 3,742,136
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 506,234 493,962 480,453 $ 3,835,108
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest ¥ 10,722 14,860 19,321 $ 81,227
Income taxes 102,421 90,560 103,877 775,917

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TC CONSOLI

DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Basis of Presentation and Significant

Accounting Policies
{a) Description of Business
The Company and subsidiaries (collectively “Canon”) is a high-
technology oriented company which operates globally and has
numerous core businesses. Originally a 35mm camera maker,
Canon is now one of the world's leading manufacturers in other
fields, such as copying machines and computer peripherals,
mainly laser beam and bubble jet printers. Canon's products
also include business systems such as faxes, computers,
micrographics and calculators. Canon's camera business
consists mainly of SLR cameras, compact cameras, digital
cameras and video camcorders. Optical related products include
steppers and aligners used in semiconductor chip production,
broadcasting lenses and medical equipment. Canon'’s sales in
the year ended December 31, 2001 were distributed as
follows: copying machines-31%, computer peripherals-35%,
business systems-11%, cameras-13%, and optical and other
products-10%.

Sales are made principally under the Canon brand name,
almost entirely through sales subsidiaries. These subsidiaries are
responsible for marketing and distribution and primarily sell to
retail dealers in their geographical area. Approximately 70% of
consolidated net sales in the year ended December 31, 2001
were generated outside Japan, with 34% in Americas, 27% in
Europe and 9% in other areas.

Canon's manufacturing operations are conducted primarily
at 17 plants in Japan and 13 overseas plants which are located
in the United States, Germany, France, Taiwan, China, Malaysia,
Thailand, and Mexico.

Canon sells laser beam printers on an OEM basis to
Hewlett-Packard Co.; such sales constituted approximately 2 1%
of consolidated sales for the year ended December 31, 2001.

(b) Basis of Presentation

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their
books of account in conformity with financial accounting
standards of Japan. Foreign subsidiaries maintain their books in
conformity with financial accounting standards of the countries
of their domicile.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect
the adjustments which management believes are necessary to
conform them with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

(¢} Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Canon after elimination of all significant intercompany balances
and transactions.

(d) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, Canon considers
all highly-liquid debt instruments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(e) Tramslation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency financial statements have been translated in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 52 (“SFAS 52"), “Foreign Currency Translation”. Under SFAS
52, assets and liabilities of the Company's subsidiaries located
outside Japan are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses
resulting from translation of financial statements are excluded
from the consolidated statement of income and are reported in
other comprehensive income (loss). Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during
the year. Gain and losses resulting from other foreign currency
transactions are included in other income (deductions).

{f) Marketable Securities and Marketable Investments
Canon dlassifies its debt and equity securities into one of three
categories: trading, available-for-sale, or held-to-maturity securi-
ties. Trading securities are bought and held principally for the
purpose of selling them in the near term. Held-to-maturity secu-
rities are those securities in which Canon has the ability and
intent to hold the security until maturity. All securities not
included in trading or held-to-maturity are classified as available-
for-sale.

Trading and available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair
value. Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost,
adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or dis-
counts. Unrealized holding gains and losses on trading securities
are included in earnings. Unrealized holding gains and losses,
net of the related tax effect, on available-for-sale securities are
excluded from eamings and are reported as a separate compo-
nent of other comprehensive income until realized.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is deter-
mined principally by the average method for domestic invento-
ries and the first-in, first-out method for overseas inventories.
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(h) Investments in Affiliated Companies

Of the investments in affiliated companies owned 20% to 50%,
certain investments are accounted for on the equity basis and
the others are carried at cost. Canon’s equity in undistributed
eamings of the latter companies is not significant.

Canon's share of the net eamings (loss) of companies
carried at equity, included in other income (deductions), and
dividends received from those companies for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2001 2000 1999 2001
Neteamnings (loss) ¥ {1,845) 10,817 (2,848) $ (13,977)
Dividends received 407 67 40 3,038

(i) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated principally by the declining-balance
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
depreciation period ranges from 3 years to 60 years for
buildings and 2 vears to 20 years for machinery and equipment.

(j) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goedwill, which represents the excess cost over the net tangible
and identifiable intangible assets acquired at acquisition dates of
investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies, is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected periods to
be benefited, generally 10 years. Canon assesses the
recoverability of this intangible asset by determining whether the
amortization of the goodwill balance over its remaining life can
be recovered through undiscounted future cash flows of the
acquired operation. The amount of goodwill impairment, if any,
is measured based on projected discounted future operating
cash flows using a discount rate reflecting Canon’s average cost
of funds.

Other intangible assets principally consist of software for
internal-use. Certain costs incurred to purchase or develop
software for internal-use during the application development
stage are capitalized. The cost of software is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, which is
generally 5 years.
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{k} Income Taxes

Canon accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 ("SFAS 109",
"Accounting for Income Taxes”. Under the asset and liability
method of SFAS 108, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the estimated future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to
be recovered or settled. Under SFAS 109, the effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date.

(l) Employee Retirement and Severance Benefits
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have various
employee retirement and severance defined benefit plans
covering substantially all employees who meet eligibility
requirements (see note 10).

(m) Research and Development and Advertising
The costs of research and development and advertising are
expensed as incurred.

(n) Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs totaled ¥33,835 million ($256,326
thousand), ¥31,633 million and ¥30,244 million for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1939, respectively, and
are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated statements of income.




CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(o) Derivative Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2001, Canon adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133 ("SFAS 133"), “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and No. 138
("SFAS 138"), “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Certain Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133". Both standards establish accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments and for hedging
activities, and require that an entity recognize all derivatives as
either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measure
those instruments at fair value,

All derivatives are recognized on the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair value. On the date the derivative contract is
entered into, Canon designates the derivative as either a hedge
of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an
unrecognized firm commitment (“fair value” hedge), a hedge of
a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be
received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (“cash
flow" hedge), a foreign-currency fair-value or cash-flow hedge
(“foreign currency” hedge), or a hedge of a net investment in a
foreign operation. Canon formally documents all relationships
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives
that are designated as fair-value, cash-flow, or foreign-currency
hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted
transactions. Canon also formally assesses, both at the hedge's
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that
are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. When it is
determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge or
that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, Canon
discontinues hedge accounting prospectively.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly
effective and that is designated and qualifies as a fair-value
hedge, along with the loss or gain on the hedged asset or
liability or unrecognized firm commitment of the hedged item
that is attributable to the hedged risk are recorded in eamnings.
Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective
and that is designated and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are
recorded in other comprehensive income (loss), until earnings
are affected by the variability in cash flows of the designated
hedged item. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
highly effective as hedges and that are designated and qualify as
foreign-currency hedges are recorded in either eamings or other
comprehensive income (loss), depending on whether the
hedge transaction is a fair-value hedge or a cash-flow hedge.
However, if a derivative is used as a hedge of a net investment
in a foreign operation, its changes in fair value, to the extent
effective as a hedge, are recorded in the cumulative translation

adjustments account within other comprehensive income (loss).

Canon discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it
is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in
offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged
item, the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
the derivative is dedesignated as a hedging instrument, because
it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur, a hedged
firm commitment no longer meets the definition of a firm
commitment, or management determines that designation of
the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is
determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective
fair-value hedge, Canon continues to carry the derivative on the
consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, and no longer
adjusts the hedged asset or liability for changes in fair value. The
adjustment of the carrying amount of the hedged asset or
liability is accounted for in the same manner as other
components of the carrying amount of that asset or liability.
When hedge accounting is discontinued because the hedged
item no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment,
Canon continues to carry the derivative on the consolidated
balance sheet at its fair value, removes any asset or liability that
was recorded pursuant to recognition of the firm commitment
from the consolidated balance sheet and recognizes any gain or
loss in earnings. When hedge accounting is discontinued
because it is probable that a forecasted transaction will not
occur, Canon continues to carry the derivative on the
consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, and gains and losses
that were accumulated in other comprehensive income (loss)
are recognized immediately in eamings. in all other situations in
which hedge accounting is discontinued, Canon continues to
carry the derivative at its fair value on the consolidated balance
sheet, and recognizes any changes in its fair value in eamings.

The cumulative effect adjustment upon the adoption of
SFAS 133 and 138, net of the related income tax effect,
resulted in an increase to net income of approximately ¥3,692
million ($27,970 thousand) and a decrease to other
comprehensive incorne (loss) of approximately ¥2,401 million
($18,189 thousand).

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133 and 138, derivative
financial instruments that were designated and effective to
hedge forecasted transactions for which there was no firm
commitment were marked to market, and gains and losses on
such derivatives were recorded in other income (deductions).
Foreign currency derivative financial instruments generally
qualified for hedge accounting if their maturity dates
corresponded to hedged existing assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, and gains and losses on
such derivative financial instruments were recognized and
recorded in other income {deductions) at end of year and at
settlement, as were the offsetting foreign exchange losses and
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gains on the hedged items. Gains and losses on the hedging
derivative financial instruments that were designated and
effective as hedges of firm commitments were deferred and
recognized in income when the sale of the hedged items
occurred. Amounts receivable or payable under derivative
financial instruments used to manage interest rate risks arising
from financial assets and liabilities were recognized as a
component of interest income ar expense of such related
underlying assets or liabilities (see note 17).

(p) Issuance of Stock by Subsidiaries

The change in the Company's proportionate share of subsidiary
equity resulting from issuance of stock by the subsidiaries is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

(q) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share have been computed by dividing net
income available to common stockholders by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during each
year. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution and
have been computed on the basis that all convertible
debentures were converted at beginning of the year or at time
of issuance (if later), and that all dilutive warrants were
exercised (less the number of treasury shares assumed to be
purchased from the proceeds using the average market price of
the Company's common shares).

(r) Use of Estimates

Management of Canon has made a number of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(s) Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of
Canon's long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used
is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
to future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest
charges) expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets
are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized
is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the assets exceed the fair value of the assets. Assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell.
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(t) Revenue Recognition

Canon recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement including title transfer exists, delivery has occurred,
the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is
probable. These criteria are met for mass-merchandising
products such as printers and cameras at the time when the
product is received by the customer, and for products with
acceptance provisions such as steppers at the time when the
product is received by the customer and the specific criteria of
the product is demonstrated by Canon with only certain
inconsequential or perfunctory work left to be performed by the
customer.

(u) Accounting for Sales Incentives

In May 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a final
consensus on Issue 00-14 (“EITF 00-14"), "Accounting for
Certain Sales Incentives”. EITF 00-14 addresses accounting and
reporting standards for sales incentives such as coupons or
rebates that are provided by vendors or manufacturers and are
exercisable by customers at the point of sale.

In January 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force also
reached a final consensus on a portion of Issue 00-22 ("EITF
00-22"), “"Accounting for "Points” and Certain Other Time-Based
or Volume-Based Sales Incentive Offers, and Offers for Free
Products or Services to Be Delivered in the Future”. EITF 00-22
addresses accounting and reporting standards for sales
incentives such as royalty programs or rebates that are offered
to customers by vendors only if the customer completes a
specified cumulative level of revenue transactions with the
vendor or remains a customer of the vendor for a specified time
period.

In April 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force also reached
a final consensus on Issue 00-25 (“EITF 00-25"), “Vendor
Income Statement Characterization of Consideration Paid to a
Reseller of the Vendor's Products”. EITF 00-25 addresses the
income statement characterization of consideration, other than
that directly addressed in EITF 00-14, from a vendor to an entity
that purchases the vendor's products for resale.

Canon adopted these consensuses on a prospective basis
from the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2001. However,
consolidated financial statements for the prior period have been
reclassified to comply with the income statement display
requirements. The adoption results in a reduction in net sales
for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 of ¥84,883
million and ¥91,369 million, respectively, and a corresponding
decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses, with
no effect on net income. The adoption of these consensuses
did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(v) New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 ("SFAS
141"), “Business Combinations”, and Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142 (*SFAS 142"), "Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations
completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 141 also specifies the
types of acquired intangible assets that are required to be
recognized and reported separately from goodwill and those
acquired intangible assets that are required to be included in
goodwill. SFAS 142 will require that goodwill no longer be
amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually.
SFAS 142 will also require recognized intangible assets be
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and
reviewed for impairment in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 144"),
*Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”. Any recognized intangible asset determined to have an
indefinite useful life will not be amortized, but instead tested for
impairment unti its life is determined to no longer be indefinite.

Canon adopted the provisions of SFAS 141 and SFAS 142
on January 1, 2002, with the exception of the immediate
requirement to use the purchase method of accounting for all
future business combinations completed after June 30, 2001,
However, any goodwill and any intangible asset determined to
have an indefinite useful life that is acquired in a business
combination completed after June 30, 2001 will not be
amortized. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in business
combinations completed before July 1, 2007 continued to be
amortized through December 31, 2001.

SFAS 141 requires Canon to evaluate its existing intangible
assets and goodwill and to make any necessary reclassifications
in order to conform to the new separation requirements at the
date of adoption. Upon adoption of SFAS 142, Canon is
required to reassess the useful lives and residual values of all
intangible assets and make any necessary amortization period
adjustments by March 31, 2002.

In connection with the transitional impairment evaluation,
SFAS 142 will require Canon to perform an assessment of
whether there is an indication that goodwill is impaired as of
January 1, 2002. To accomplish this, Canon must (1) identify its
reporting units, (2) determine the carrying value of each
reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the
existing goodwill and intangible assets to those reperting units,
and (3) determine the fair value of each reporting unit. This first
step of the transitional assessment is required to be completed
by June 30, 2002. If the carrying value of any reporting unit
exceeds its fair value, then detailed fair values for each of the
assigned assets (excluding goodwill) and liabilities will be
determined to calculate the amount of goodwill impairment, if

any. This second step is required to be completed as soon as
possible, but no later than December 31, 2002. Any transitional
impairment loss resulting from the adoption will be recognized
as the effect of a change in accounting principle in Canon’s
consolidated statement of income. The adoption of SFAS 141
did not have a material effect on Canon’s consolidated financial
position and results of operations. Management does not
anticipate that the adoption of SFAS 142 will have a material
effect on Canon's consolidated financial position and results of
operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 (“SFAS 143"),
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS 143 applies
to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived
assets that result from the acquisition, construction,
development and (or) the normal operation of a long-lived
asset, except for certain obligations of lessees. SFAS 143
requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a
reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The associated
asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset and subsequently allocated to
expense over the asset's useful life. Canon is required to adopt
the provisions of SFAS 143 on January 1, 2003. Currently, the
effect on Canon’s consolidated financial statements of adopting
SFAS 143 has not been determined.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued SFAS 144, which supersedes both Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 121 (“SFAS 121"), “Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of” and the accounting and reporting provisions
of APB Opinion No. 30 (“Opinion 30"), "Reporting the Results
of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of
a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions”, for the disposal of a
segment of a business (as previously defined in that Opinion).
SFAS 144 retains the fundamental provisions in SFAS 121 for
recognizing and measuring impairment losses on long-lived
assets held for use and long-lived assets to be disposed of by
sale, while also resolving significant implementation issues
associated with SFAS 121. For example, SFAS 144 provides
guidance on how a long-lived asset that is used as part of a
group should be evaluated for impairment, establisnes criteria
for when a long-lived asset is held for sale, and prescribes the
accounting for a long-lived asset that will be disposed of other
than by sale. SFAS 144 retains the basic provisions of Opinion
30 on how to present discontinued operations in the income
statement but broadens that presentation to include a
component of an entity (rather than a segment of a business).
Unlike SFAS 121, an impairment assessment under SFAS 144
will never result in & write-down of goodwill. Rather, goodwill is
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evaluated for impairment under SFAS 142. Canon adopted the
provision of SFAS 144 on January 1, 2002. The adoption of
SFAS 144 did not have a material effect on Canon's
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

(w) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years'
consolidated financial statements to conform the presentation

used for the year ended December 31, 2001. Certain gains and
losses on sale and disposal of property, plant and equipment,
which were previously recorded in other income (deductions),
are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in
the year ended December 31, 2001. As a result of the
reclassification, operating profit for the years ended December
31,2000 and 1999 decreased by ¥11,868 million and ¥7,712
million, respectively.

(2) Financial Statement Translation

The consolidated financial statements presented herein are
expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader,
have been translated into United States dollars at the rate of
¥132 =US. $1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on

the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on December 28, 2001.
This translation should not be construed as a representation that
the amounts shown could be converted into United States
dollars at such rate.

(3) Foreign Operations
Amounts included in the consolidated financial statements
relating to subsidiaries operating in foreign countries are

summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 1999 2C01
Total assets ¥1,074,856 1,016,908 917,810 $ 8,142,848
Net assets 482,986 381,553 326,631 3,658,985
Net sales 2,048,993 1,864,123 1,776,688 15,522,674
Net income 31,903 37519 32,876 247,689
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CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(4) Marketable Securities and Marketable

Investments unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized holding losses and fair
Marketable securities and marketable investments consist of value for such securities by major security type at December 31,
available-for-sale securities. The carrying amount, gross 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding
(Millions of yen) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2007: Current:
Available-for-sale:

Jepanese and foreign governmental bond securities ¥ 55 - - 55
Corporate debt securities 3,623 59 - 3,682
Bank debt securities 91 - - 91
Equity securilies 1,008 2 66 944
Y 4,777 61 66 4,772

Noncurrent:

Avalladle-for-sale:

Japznese znd foreign governmental bond securities ¥ 201 - - 201
Corporate debt securities 5,553 267 - 5,820
Fund frusts 1,891 82 2 1,871
Equity securities 6,430 5,635 646 11,419
%14,075 5,984 648 19,411
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding
(Millions of yen) Cost Cains Losses Fair Value
2000; Current:
Available-for-sale:

Japanese and foreign governmental bond securities ¥ 49 — — 49
Corporate debt securities 2,734 273 - 3,007
Bank debt securities 91 - — 91
Fund trusts 2977 540 - 3517
Equity securities 3,260 1,116 97 4,279

¥ 9111 1,929 97 10,943

Noncurrent:
Available-for-sale:

Japanese and foreign governmental bond securities ¥ 174 - - 174
Corporate debt securities 5,133 126 - 5,259
Bank debt securities 149 1 - 150
Fund trusts 40 - 1 39
Equity securities 26,696 31,430 7 58,119
¥32192 371,557 8 63,741
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Gross Cross

Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding
(Thousands of U.S. dollars) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
2007: Current:

Available-lor-sale:

Japanese and foreign governmental bond securities § 417 - - 417

Corporate debt securities 27,447 447 - 27,894

Bank debt securfties 689 - - 689

Equity securities 7,636 16 500 7,152

$ 36,189 463 500 36,152

Noncurrent:

Avzilable-for-sale:

Japanese and foreign governmental bond securities § 1,523 - - 1,523

Corporzte debt securities 42,068 2,023 - 44,091

Fund trusts 14,326 621 15 14,932

Equitty securities 48,712 42,689 4,894 86,507

$106,629 45,333 4,909 147,053

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities, net of
related taxes and minority interests, decreased by ¥13,603 million
($103,053 thousand) and ¥34,532 million in the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and increased by

¥41,257 million in the year ended December 31, 1999.

Maturities of marketable securities and marketable
investments classified as available-for-sale were as follows at
December 31, 2001:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Due within one year ¥ 3824 3,883 § 28570 29,417
Due after one year through five years 2074 2,387 15712 18,083
Due after five years 5516 5,550 41,788 42046
Equity securities 7,438 12,363 56,348 93,659
¥18,852 24,183 $142,818 183,205

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities were
¥9,473 million (871,765 thousand), ¥2,428 million and ¥6,637
million in the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.

In June 2001, Canon contributed certain marketable equity
securities, not including those of its subsidiaries and affiliated
companies, to an established employee retirement benefit trust,
with no cash proceeds thereon. The fair value of those securities
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at the time of contribution was ¥38,954 million (295,106
thousand). Upon contribution of those available-for-sale
securities, the net unrealized gains amounting to ¥15,536
million ($117,697 thousand) were realized and were
accounted for as "Other, net” in the consalidated statements of
income.

Realized gains and losses during the years ended December
31,2000 and 1999 were insignificant.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

(5) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are summarized as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen US. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Notes ¥ 43,563 44,189 $ 330,023
Accounts 424,163 447218 3,213,556
Less allowance for doubtful receivables 17,091 11,617 846,023

¥ 656,635 479,790 $ 3,459,356
(6) inventories
Inventories comprised the following:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Finished goods ¥ 323,810 354796 $ 2,453,864
Work in process 308,255 121,278 804,962
Raw materials 18,135 14,619 137,586
¥ 448,500 490,693 § 3,396,212
(7) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen US. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Land ¥ 157,250 155,358 $ 1,191,295
Buildings 691,661 652,779 5,239,856
Machinery and equipment 936,281 918,490 7,093,038
Construction in progress 61,039 34,819 462,417
1,046,232 1,761,446 13,986,605
Less accumulated depreciation 1,025,107 989,852 7,765,962
¥ 821,125 771,594 $ 6,220,644
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(8) Short-term Loans and Long-term Debt
Short-term loans consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Bank borrowings ¥ 62,103 65911 $ 470477
Acceptances payable by foreign subsidiaries 84,253 144,282 638,280
Long-term debt due within one year 53,748 38,495 407,182
¥ 200,104 248,688 § 1,515,939

The weighted average interest rates on short-term loans
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were 2.76% and
6.05%, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, unused short-term credit facllities
for issuance of commercial paper amounted to ¥65,975 million
(8499,810 thousand).

A substantial portion of the acceptances payable by foreign
subsidiaries was secured by the subsidiaries” inventories and
trade receivables.

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Miflions of yen U.S. dallars
2001 2000 2001
Loans, principally from banks, maturing in instaliments through 2030;
bearing weighted average interest of 3.93% and 3.40% at December 31,
2007 and 2000, respectively, partially secured by mortgage of property,
plant and equipment and marketable securities ¥ 37,850 49,574 § 286,742
2-7/20% Japanese yen notes, due 2001 - 15,920 -
2-1/20% Japanese yen notes, due 2002 5,000 5,000 37,879
2-3/5% Japanese yen notes, due 2002 20,479 20,000 155,144
1-7/50% Japanese yen notes, due 2002 2,000 2,000 15,151
1-3/5% Japanese yen notes, due 2002 10,000 10,000 75,758
2-3/10% Japanese yen notes, due 2003 5,000 5,000 37,879
1-53/100% Japanese yen notes, due 2003 5,000 5,000 37,879
2-23/40% Japanese yen notes, due 2004 10,800 10,000 75,758
2-1/40% Japanese yen notes, due 2004 10,800 10,000 75,758
1-22/25% Japanese yen notes, due 2005 5,000 5,000 37,879
2-19/20% Japanese yen notes, due 2007 10,000 10,000 73,758
2-27/100% Japanese yen notes, due 2008 10,000 10,000 75,758
1% Japanese yen convertible debentures, due 2002 3,825 4,746 28,977
1-2/10% Japanese yen convertible debentures, due 2005 5,172 5221 39,181
1-3/10% Japanese yen convertible debentures, due 2008 9,948 9,959 75,363
149,278 181,420 1,130,864
Less amount due within one year 53,748 38,495 407,182
¥ 95,526 142,925 $ 723,682
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The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt
outstanding at December 31, 2001 were as follows:

Millions Thousands of
of yen US. dollars
2002 ¥ 57,573 § 436,159
2003 20,466 155,046
2004 25,202 190,924
2005 11,742 88,955
2006 433 3,280
Later years 33,858 256,500
¥ 148,274 $1,130,364

Property, plant and equipment with a book value at
December 31, 2001 of ¥10,713 million ($81,159 thousand)
were mortgaged to secure long-term debt.

As is customary in Japan, both short-term and long-term
bank loans are made under general agreements which provide
that security and guarantees for present and future
indebtedness will be given upon request of the bank, and that
the bank shall have the right to offset cash deposits against
obligations that have become due or, in the event of default,
against all obligations due the bank. Long-term agreements with

lenders other than banks also generally provide that Canon
must give additional security upon request of the lender.

The 1% Japanese yen convertible debentures due 2002
are currently convertible into approximately 2,555,000 shares
of common stock at & conversion price of ¥1,497.00 (311.34)
per share.

The 1-2/10% Japanese yen convertible debentures due
2005 are currently convertible into approximately 3,455,000
shares of common stock at a conversion price of ¥1,497.00 ($
11.34) per share. The debentures are redeemable at the
option of the Company between January 1, 2002 and
December 31, 2004 at premiums ranging from 3% to 1%,
and at par thereafter, or, dependent on a particular
circumstance, at par.

The 1-3/10% Japanese yen convertible debentures due
2008 are currently convertible into approximately 6,645,000
shares of common stock at & conversion price of ¥1,497.00 (%
11.34) per share. The debentures are redeemable at the
option of the Company between January 1, 2002 and
December 31, 2007 at premiums ranging from 6% to 1%,
and at par thereafter, or, dependent on a particular
crcumstance, at par.
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(9) Trade Payables
Trade payables are summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Notes ¥ 86,432 139,804 § 654,788
Accounts 268,014 304,829 2,030,409
¥354,446 444 633 $2,685,197

(10) Employee Retirement and Severance Benefits
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have contributory
and noncontributory defined benefit plans covering substantially
all employees after one year of service. Other subsidiaries
sponsor unfunded retirement and severance plans. Benefits
payable under the plans are based on employee earnings and
years of service. The contributory plan includes a portion of the
governmental welfare pension benefits which would otherwise
be provided by the Japanese government in accordance with
the Welfare Pension Insurance Law in Japan. Management
considers that a portion of the contributory plans, which are

administered by a board of trustees composed of management
and labor representatives, represents a welfare pension plan
carried on behalf of the Japanese government. These
contributory and noncontributory plans are funded in conformity
with the funding requirements of applicable Japanese
governmental regulations.

Net periodic benefit cost for Canon’s employee retirement
and severance defined benefit plans for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 consisted of the
following components:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 1999 20010
Senvice cost — benefits eamed during the year ¥ 36,553 31,712 31,295 $276,917
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 20,341 16512 15,599 154,098
Expected return on plan assets (13,636) (9,834) (10,393) (103,303)
Net amortization 8,755 5016 6,566 65,326
¥ 52,013 43,406 43,067 $ 394,038
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Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of the benefit
obligations and the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen US. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year ¥ 614,187 518,078 $ 4,652,932
Service cost 38,553 31,712 276,917
Interest cost 20,3475 16,512 154,098
Plan participants’ contributions 3,517 3512 26,544
Amendments (56,664) - (429,273)
Actuarial loss 69,352 44,349 525,394
Benefits paid (©,816) (6,727) (74,364)
Other 40,621 6,751 307,735
Benefit obligations at end of year 718,091 614,187 5,440,083
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 338,223 311,407 2,562,293
Actual return on plan assets (34,942) (1,349) (264,712}
Employer contributions 89,626 27,594 678,985
Plan participants’ contributions 3,517 3512 26,644
Benefits paid (©,316)  (6727) (74,364)
Other 42,875 3,786 324,811
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 429,483 338,223 3,253,659
Funded status (288,608) (275,964) (2,186,624)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 295,664 189,906 2,239,879
Unrecognized prior service cost (56,664) - (4629,273)
Unrecognized net transition obligation being recognized over 22 years 5,333 5,680 40,401
Net amount recognized ¥ (44,275)  (80,378) $ (335417)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:
Prepaid pension cost ¥ 1,394 - $ 10,361
Accrued pension and serverance cost (237,537) (194,445) (1,799,523)
Intangible assets - 5,680 -
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), gross of tax 191,868 108,387 53,545

L,
|

4
S (335417)

Net amount recognized ¥ (44,275)  (80,378)
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate 2.7% 3.0%
Assumed rate of increase in future compensation levels 3.3% 2.1%
Expected long-term rate of retumn on plan assets 3.5% 4.0%

Employer contributions for the year ended December 31,
2001 include contribution of equity securities to an employee
pension trust. The fair value of those securities at the time of
contribution was ¥38,954 million ($295,106 thousand).

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit
obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans
with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets
were ¥671,407 million ($5,086,417 thousand), ¥608,706
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million (84,611,409 thousand) and ¥381,514 million
($2,890,258 thousand) as of December 31, 2001.

Directors and certain employees are not covered by the
programs described above. Benefits paid to such persons and
meritorious service payments are charged to income as paid,
since amounts vary with circumstances, and it is therefore not
practicable to compute the liability for future payments.




(11) Income Taxes
Total income taxes were allocated as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen US. dollars
2001 2000 1999 2001

Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 115,154 87,197 83,939 $ 872,379
Stockholders’ equity — accumulated other comprehensive

income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments (684) 1,387 (239) (5.182)

Net unrealized gains on securities (11,692) (25,457) 37,286 (88,575)

Net losses on derivative instruments (1,755) - - (13,295)

Minimum pension liability adjustments (26,592) (19,365) 7,712 (201,455)

¥ 74,451 43,762 128,698 § 563,872

Domestic and foreign components of income before
income taxes and minority interests (“income before income
taxes”), and the current and deferred income tax expense

(benefit) attributable to such income before income taxes are

summarized as follows:

Millions of yen
Japanese Foreign Total
2001: Income before income {axes Y¥230,456 51,110 281,566
Income taxes:
Current ¥ 95,664 17,318 112,282
Deferred (1,738) 3,910 2,172
¥ 93,926 21,228 115,154
2000: Income before income taxes ¥166,074 61,122 227,196
Income taxes:
Current ¥ 78832 18,645 97,477
Deferred (14,584) 4304 (10,280)
¥ 64,248 22,949 87,197
1999: Income before income taxes ¥ 100,044 56,028 156,072
Income taxes:
Current ¥ 64,197 25,714 89,911
Deferred (2,097) (3,875) (5,972)
¥ 62,100 21,839 83,939
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Japanese Foreign Total
2001: Income before income (axes $1,745,879 387,197 2,133,076
Income (anes:
Current $ 724,727 131,198 855,925
Deferred (13,166) 29,620 16,454
§ 711,561 160,878 872,379
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The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a
number of taxes based on income, which in the aggregate
resulted in a normal tax rate of approximately 42.0 % in the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and
47.0% in the year ended December 31, 1999.

Amendments to Japanese tax regulations were enacted into
law on March 24, 1999. As a result of these amendments, the
normal income tax rate was reduced from approximately 47.0%
to 42.0% effective from Canon'’s fiscal year beginning January 1,
2000. Current income taxes were calculated at the rate of

42.0% in effect for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, and 47% in effect for the year ended December 31,
1999. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December
31,2001 and 2000 were measured at a rate of principally
42.0%. The effects of the income tax rate reduction on deferred
income tax balances as of December 31, 1999 are presented
below.

The significant components of deferred income tax expense
(benefit) attributable to income before income taxes are as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen US. dollars
2001 2000 1999 2001
Deferred tax expense (exclusive of the effects of
other components listed below) ¥ 2,172 (10280)  (16,181) $ 16,454
Adjustments to deferred tax assets and liabilities
for enacted changes in tax laws and rates - - 10,209 -
¥ 2,072 (10280) (5,972) $ 16,454
A reconciliation of the Japanese normal income tax rate and income taxes is as follows:
the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before
2001 2000 1999
Japanese normal income tax rate 42.0% 42.0% 47.0%
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting from:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.4 09 1.0
Tax benefits not recognized on operating losses of subsidiaries 0.9 0S8 1.2
Income of foreign subsidiaries taxed at lower than Japanese normal tax rate (2.0) (1.9) (6.1)
Tax credit for increased research and development expenses (2.1) (1.3) (0.5)
Effect of enacted changes in tax laws and rates - - 65
Other 0.7 (2.2) 47
Effective income tax rate 40.9% 38.4% 53.8%
Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are reflected
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the
following captions:
Thousands of
Millions of yen US. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ¥ 82,951 81,789 $ 628,416
Other assets 160,821 110,095 1,218,341
Other current liabilities (1,517) (961) (11,492)
Other noncurrent liabilities (10,234)  (16,704) (77,530)
¥ 232,021 174,219 $1,757,735
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to
significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are presented
below:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 2001
Deferred tax assets:
Inventories — intercompany profits and write-downs ¥ 49,754 52,279 $ 376,924
Accrued business tax 6,146 4587 46,561
Accrued pension and severance cost 39,941 32,421 302,583
Minimum pension liability adjustments 87,524 45,520 663,061
Property, plant and equipment — intercompany profits 3,715 3,840 28,144
Research and development — costs capitalized for tax purposes 23,067 24,527 174,750
Depreciation 13,828 12,853 104,757
Other 61,636 46,494 466,940
Total gross deferred tax assets 285,611 222,521 2,163,720
Less valuation allowance 12,875 6,367 97,538
Net deferred tax assets 272,736 216,154 2,066,182
Deferred tax liabilities:
Land including deferred gain on sale (3,028) (3,305) (22,939)
Unamortized debt issuance cost (205) (276) (1,553)
Accounts receivable — allowance for doubtful accounts (990) (1,601) (7,500)
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries and
affiliated companies (5.472) (5,899) (41,455)
Net unrealized gains on securities (2,247)  (13,939) (17,023)
Other (28,773)  (16915) (217,977)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (40,715)  (41,935) (308,447)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 232,021 174219 $1,757,735

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of January
1, 2000 was ¥4,191 million. The net change in the total valua-
tion allowance for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000 was an increase of ¥6,508 million ($49,303 thousand)
and ¥2,176 million, respectively.

Based upon the level of historical taxable income and pro-
jections for future taxable income over the periods which the
net deductible temporary differences are expected to reverse,
management believes it is more likely than not Canon will real-
ize the benefits of these deferred tax assets, net of the existing
valuation allowances at December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2001, Canon had net operating losses
carried forward for income tax purposes of approximately
¥23,357 million ($176,947 thousand) which were available to
reduce future income taxes, if any. Approximately ¥22,490 mil-
lion (3170,379 thousand) of the operating losses expire
through 2008 while the remainder have an indefinite carryfor-
ward period.
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income taxes have not been accrued on undistributed
income of domestic subsidiaries and affiliated companies as dis-
tributions of such income are not taxable under present circum-
stances.

Canon has not recognized deferred tax liabilities of approxi-
mately ¥35,404 million (8268,212 thousand) for the portion of
undistributed eamings of foreign subsidiaries that arose in the
year ended December 31, 2001 and prior years because
Canon currently does not expect those unremitted eamings to
reverse and become taxable to the Company in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax liabilities will be recognized when Canon
expects that it will recover those undistributed earnings in a tax-
able manner, such as through receipt of dividends or sale of the
investments. As of December 31, 20071, such undistributed
earnings of these subsidiaries were approximately ¥342,414
million ($2,594,045 thousand).
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{12) Common Stock

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1399,
the Company issued 655,309 shares, 4,071,325 shares and
1,249,828 shares of common stock, respectively. The issuance
of 3,176,373 shares during the year ended December 31,
2000 was in connection with the acquisition of the outstanding
minority ownership interest of Canon Chemicals Inc. (“Canon
Chemicals"). The acquisition of the minority interest was
consummated on November 7, 2000, whereby Canon

Chemicals became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The remaining issuance of the shares of the Company was in
connection with conversion of convertible debt. Conversion into
common stock of convertible debt issued subsequent to
October 1, 1982 was accounted for by crediting one-half of the
conversion price and exercise price to each of the common
stock account and the additional paid-in capital account.

(13) Legal Reserve and Cash Dividends

The Japanese Commercial Code provided that an amount equal
to at least 10% of appropriations paid in cash be appropriated
as a legal reserve until such reserve equals 25% of common
stock. The Japanese Commercial Code, amended effective on
October 1, 2001, provides that an amount equal to at least
10% of appropriations paid in cash be appropriated as a legal
reserve until an aggregated amount of additional paid-in capital
and the legal reserve equals 25% of common stock. Certain
foreign subsidiaries are also required to appropriate their
earnings to legal reserves under the laws of the respective
countries. Canon’s equity in retained earnings or deficit of
affiliated companies owned 20% to 50% accounted for on the
equity basis aggregating positive ¥10,340 million (878,333
thousand) at December 31, 2001 is included in retained
earnings.

Cash dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve
charged to retained earnings during the years ended December
31,2001, 2000 and 1999 represent dividends paid out during
those years and the related appropriations to the legal reserve.
Provision has not been made in the accompanying consolidated

financial statements for the dividend for the second half year of
¥14.50 ($0.11) per share, aggregating ¥12,705 million
($96,250 thousand), subsequently proposed by the Board of
Directors in respect of the year ended December 31, 2001.

Cash dividends per common share are computed based on
dividends declared with respect to eamnings for the periods.

The amount available for dividends under the Japanese
Commercial Code is based on the amount recorded in the
Company's nonconsolidated bocks of account in accordance
with financial accounting standards of Japan. The adjustments
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
to have them conform with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, but not recorded in
the books of account, have no effect on the determination of
retained eamings available for dividends under the Japanese
Commercial Code. The amount available for dividends in the
Company’s nonconsolidated books of account under the
Japanese Commercial Code amounted to ¥63 1,646 milion
(34,785,197 thousand) at December 31, 2001.

{(14) Noncash Financing Activities
In the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
common stock and additional paid-in capital arising from
conversion of convertible debt amounted to ¥981 million
(87,432 thousand), ¥1,335 million and ¥1,871 million,
respectively.

As a result of the acquisition of the outstanding minority

ownership interest of Canon Chemicals Inc. during the year
ended December 31, 2000, goodwill classified as other assets,
common stock and additional paid-in capital increased by
¥4,116 million, ¥159 million and ¥14,430 million, respectively,
and also minority interests decreased by ¥10,473 million.
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(15) Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is
as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 1999 2001

Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Balance at beginning of year ¥ (104,149) (127,148) (66372)  § (789,007)

Adjustments for the year 51,489 22,999 (60,776) 390,068

Balance at end of year (52,660) (104,149) (127,148) (398,939)
Net unrealized gains on securities:

Balance at beginning of year 14,167 48,699 7,442 107,525

Adjustments for the year (13,603) (34,532) 41,257 (103,053)

Balance at end of year 564 14,167 48,699 4,272
Net losses on derivative instruments:

Balance at beginning of year - — ~ -

Adjustments for the year (2,423) - - (18,356)

Balance at end of year (2,423) - - (18,356)
Minimum pension liability adjustments:

Balance at beginning of year (56,600) (29,858) (38,555) (428,788)

Adjustments for the year (24,049) (26,742) 8,697 (182,189)

Balance at end of year (80,649) (56,600) (29,858) (610,977)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Balance at beginning of year (146,582) (108,307) (97,485) (1,110,469)

Adjustments for the year 11,414 (38,275) (10,822) 86,469

Balance at end of year ¥ (135,168) (146,582) (108,307) $(1,024,000)
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Tax effects allocated to each component of other
comprehensive income (loss) and reclassification
adjustments are as follows:

Millions of yen
Before-tax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
2007:
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Amount arising during the year ¥ 50,823 684 51,507
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses rezlized in net income (18) - (18)
Net change during the year 50,805 684 51,489
Net unrealized gains on securities:
Amount arfsing during the year (8,434) 4,535 (3.899)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income (16,8617) 7,157 (9,704)
Net change during the year (25,295) 11,692 (13.,603)
Net losses on derivative instruments:
Amount arfsing during the year (11,146) 4,681 (6,465)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income 6,268 (2,928) 4,042
Net change during the year (4,178) 1,755 (2,423)
Minimum pension liability adjusiments (50,641) 26,592 (24,049)
Other comprehensive income (loss) ¥ (29,309) 40,723 11,414
2000;
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Arount arising during the year ¥ 25581 (1,392) 24,189
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income (1,195) 5 (1,190)
Net change during the year 24,386 (1,387) 22,999
Net unrealized gains on securities:
Amount arising during the year (57,484) 24,409 (33,075)
Redlassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income (2,505) 1,048 (1,457)
Net change during the year (59,989) 25,457 (34,532)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (46,107) 19,365 (26,742)
Other comprehensive income (loss) ¥ (81,710) 43435 (38,275)
1999:
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Amount arising during the year ¥ (61,023) 239 (60,784)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income 8 - 8
Net change during the year (61,015) 239 (60,776)
Net unrealized gains on securities:
Amount arising during the year 79,789 (37,914) 41,875
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income (1,246) 628 (618)
Net change during the year 78,543 (37,286) 41,257
Minimum pension liability adjustments 16,409 (7,712) 8,697
Other comprehensive income (loss) ¥ 33937 (44,759) (10,822)
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

Before-tax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount or benefit amount
20010:
Forelgn currency translation adjustments:
Amount arising during the year $ 385,023 5,182 390,205
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income (137) - (137)
Net change during the year 384,886 5,182 390,068
Net unrealized gains on securities:
Amount arising during the year (63.894) 34,356 (29,538)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income (127,734) 54,219 (73,515)
Net change during the year (191,628) 88,575 (103,053)
Net losses on derfvative instruments:
Amount arising during the year (84,439) 35,462 (48,977)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income 52,738 (22,167) 30,621
Net change during the year (31,651) 13,295 (18,356)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (383,644) 201,455 (182,189)
Other comprehensive income (loss) $(222,038) 308,507 86,469
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(16) Earnings per Share

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of basic

effect of change in accounting principle” computations is as

and diluted eamings per share for “Income before cumulative follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 1999 2001
Income before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle 163,869 134,088 70,234 $ 1,241,432
Effect of dilutive securities:
1% Japanese yen convertible debentures,
due 2002 40 45 45 303
1-2/10% Japanese yen convertible
debentures, due 2005 48 50 50 364
1-3/10% Japanese yen convertible
debentures, due 2008 91 91 89 639
Diluted income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle 164,048 134,274 70,418 $ 1,242,788
Number of shares
Average common shares outstanding 875,560,330 872,606,481 870,699,219
Effect of dilutive securities:
1% Japanese yen convertible debentures,
due 2002 2,859,462 3,322,850 3,649,401
1-2/10% Japanese yen convertible
debentures, due 2005 3,461,229 3,629,772 4,029,084
1-3/10% Japanese yen convertible
debentures, due 2008 6,646,369 6,687,888 7369714
Cther - 3,937 15,994
Diluted common shares outstanding 888,927,440 886,250,928 885,763,412
Yen US. dollars
Earnings per share before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle:
Basic 187.07 153.66 80.66 g .42
Diluted 184.55 151,51 79.50 1.40

The computation of diluted net income per share for the year
ended December 31, 2001 uses the same average common

shares outstanding used for the computation of diluted net
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income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change,
and reflects the effect of dilutive securities in diluted net income.



(17) Foreign Exchange Risk Management and
Interest Rate Risk Management (prior to
SFAS 133 and SFAS 138)

Canon operates internationally which exposes Canon to the risk

of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Derivative

financial instruments are comprised principally of foreign
exchange contracts and interest rate swaps utilized by the

Company and certain of its subsidiaries to reduce these risks.

Canon does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading

PUrpOSEs.

The contract amounts of derivative financial instruments
summarized in the following paragraphs do not represent
amounts exchanged by the parties and thus are not a measure of
the exposure of Canon through its use of derivative financial
instruments, Canon is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses
in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to foreign
exchange contracts and interest rate swaps, but it does not expect
any counterparties to fail given their high credit ratings.

Contract amounts of foreign exchange contracts and interest
rate swaps at December 31, 2000 are set forth below:

Millions of yen
To sell foreign currencies ¥361,279
To buy foreign currencies 9,600
Receive-fixed interest rate swaps 40,000
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 73,538

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries enter into
foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps to hedge the
risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates associated
with certain trade receivables, long-term debt and anticipated
sales transactions (including firm commitments) denominated
in foreign currencies. The terms of these foreign exchange
contracts rarely extend beyond three months except for those
related to long-term debt denominated in foreign currencies
which have the same terms as underlying debts. Interest rate
swap contracts are generally used by the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries to offset changes in the rates paid on long-
term debt. Interest rate swap contracts outstanding at December
31, 2000 mature between 2001 and 2004,

(18) Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Risk management policy

Canon operates internationally which exposes Canon to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.
Derivative financial instruments are comprised principally of
foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps utilized by
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to reduce these
risks. Canon assesses foreign currency exchange rate risk and
interest rate risk by continually monitoring changes in these
exposures and by evaluating hedging opportunities. Canon does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. Canon is also exposed to credit-related losses in the
event of non-performance by counterparties to derivative
financial instruments, but it is not expected that any
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations, because most of
the counterparties are internationally recognized financial
institutions and contracts are diversified into a number of major
financial institutions.
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Foreign currency exchange rate risk management

The major manufacturing bases of Canon are located in Japan
and Asia. The sales generated from overseas are mainly
denominated in U.S. dollar or Euro. Therefore, Canon's
international operations expose Canon to the risk of changes in
foreign currency. To manage foreign exchange exposure from
sales in foreign currencies such as U.S. dollars and Euro, Canon
enters into foreign exchange contracts. Canon uses foreign
exchange contracts to manage certain foreign currency
exchange exposures principally from the exchange of U.S. dollar
and Euro into Japanese yen. These contracts are primarily used
to hedge the foreign currency exposure of forecasted
intercompany sales which are denominated in foreign
currencies. In accordance with Canon's policy, a specific portion
of foreign currency exposure resulting from forecasted
intercompany sales are hedged using foreign exchange
contracts which principally mature within three months.
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Interest rate risk management

Canon’s exposure to the market risk of changes in interest rates
relates primarily to its debt obligations. The fixed-rate debt
obligations expose Canon to variability in their fair values due to
change in interest rates. To manage the variability in the fair
values caused by interest rate changes, Canon enters into
interest rate swaps, when it is determined to be appropriate
based on market conditions. The interest rate swaps change the
fixed-rate debt obligations to variable-rate debt obligations by
entering into receive-fixed, pay-variable interest rate swaps. The
hedging relationship between the interest rate swaps and its
hedged debt obligations is highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair values resulting from interest rate risk.

Fair value hedge ‘
Derivative financial instruments designated as fair value hedges
principally relate to interest rate swaps associated with fixed rate
debt obligations. Changes in fair values of the hedged debt
obligations and derivative instruments designated as fair value
nedges of these debt obligations are recognized in other
income (deductions). There is no hedging ineffectiveness or net
gains or losses excluded from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness for the year ended December 31, 2001 as the
critical terms of the interest rate swaps match the terms of the
hedged debt obligations.

Cash flow hedge

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange contracts
designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges of forecasted
intercompany sales are reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). These amounts are subsequently
reclassified into earnings through other income {(deductions) in
the same period as the hedged items affect earnings. All the

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at end of year
are substantially expected to be recognized in eamnings over the
next twelve months. Canon excludes the time value component
of the hedging instruments from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness.

The effective portions of changes in the fair value of foreign
exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges and reported
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of the
related tax effect, are losses of ¥6,465 million ($48,977
thousand) for the year ended December 31, 2001. The amounts
which were reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) into other income (deductions), net of the related
tax effect, are net losses of ¥4,042 million ($30,621 thousand)
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The amounts of the
hedging ineffectiveness is not material for the year ended
December 31, 2001. The sum of the amount of net gains or
losses excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness
which are alsc recorded in other income (deductions), net of the
related tax effect, are net gains of ¥1,907 million ($14,447
thousand) for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Canon has entered into certain interest rate swap agreements
which do not meet the hedging criteria of SFAS 133. Canon
records these interest rate swap agreements on the balance
sheet at fair value. The changes in fair values are recorded in
earnings immediately. The notional amounts of those interest
rate swap agreements were ¥62,788 million (475,667
thousand) at December 31, 2001. Canon recognized net losses
related to those interest rate swaps in the amount of ¥2,521
million ($19,098 thousand) for the year ended December 31,
2001 and classified such amount in other income (deductians).

Contract amounts of foreign exchange contracts and interest
rate swaps at December 31,2001 are set forth below:

Millions af yen

. US. dollars Euro Other Total
To sell foreign currencies ¥117,810 115,475 17,603 250,888
To buy foreign currencies 11,554 1,593 596 13,743
Receive-fixed interest rate swaps — - 21548 21,548
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 62,788 - — 62,788

Thousands of U.S. dollars

U.S. dollars Euro Other Total
To sell foreign currencies $892,500 874,811 133,356 1,900,667
To buy foreign currencies 87,531 12,068 4515 104,114
Receive-fixed interest rate swaps - — 163,242 163,242
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 475,667 - - 475,667

70




(19) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At December 31, 2001, commitments outstanding for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment approximated
¥51,446 million ($389,742 thousand). Contingent liabilities for
guarantees of bank loans to employees and to affiliated and
other companies amounted to approximately ¥66,023 million
($500,174 thousand).

Canon occupies sales offices and other facilities under lease
arrangements accounted for as operating leases. Deposits made
under such arrangements aggregated ¥18,700 million
(141,667 thousand) and ¥19,195 million at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively, and are reflected in noncurrent
receivables and restricted funds on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Future minimum lease payments required under

noncancellable operating leases that have initial or remaining
lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2001 are
as follows:

Millions Thousands of

Year ending December 31; of yen U.S. dollars
2002 ¥ 13,731 $104,023
2003 10,799 81,811
2004 6,708 50,818
2005 4916 37,242
2006 3,863 28,265
Later years 10,564 80,030

Total future minimum

lease payments ¥ 50,581 $383,189

(20) Disclosures about the Fair Vaiue of Financial
instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, Trade receivables, Short-term

loans, Trade payables, Accrued expenses

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the

short maturity of these instruments.

Marketable securities and investments
The fair values of Canon’s marketable securities and
investments are based on quoted market prices.

Noncurtent receivables and restricted funds

The fair values of Canon'’s noncurrent receivables and restricted
funds are based on the present value of future cash flows
through estimated maturity, discounted using estimated market
discount rates. Their carrying amounts at December 31, 2001
and 2000 totaled ¥21,125 million (160,038 thousand) and
¥27,626 million, respectively, which approximate fair values.
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Long-term debt

The fair values of Canon's long-term debt instruments are based
on the quoted price in the most active market or the present
value of future cash flows associated with each instrument
discounted using Canon’s current borrowing rate for similar debt
instruments of comparable maturity.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments, consisting
principally of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps,
all of which are used for purposes other than trading, are
estimated by obtaining quotes from brokers.




CANON INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

The estimated fair values of Canon’s financial instruments at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 are summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 2007
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Nonderivatives:
Assets:
Marketable securities and
Investments ¥ 38067 38,061 88,197 88,197 $ 288,341 288,541
Liabilities:

Long-term debt, including current instaliments — (149,27£) (189,577)
Derivatives relating to:
Trade receivables and anticipated
sales transactions:

(181,420) (225,188)  (1,130,864) (1,436,189)

Assets 433 493 293 293 3,735 3,735
Liabilities (13,593) (13,593) (22,486) (20,220) (102,977)  (102,977)
Long-term debt,
including current instaliments:
Interest rate swaps:
Assets 575 375 349 1,384 £,558 4,358
Liabilities (1,463)  (1,663) (49)  (584) (11,083)  (11,083)
Limitations

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based
on relevant market information and information about the
financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature

and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

(21) Supplementary Expense Information

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2001 2000 1999 2007
Research and development ¥218,616 194,552 177,922 $1,656,182
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 147,285 144,043 155,682 1,115,803
Rent 47,558 42,963 48,236 360,288
Advertising 66,8357 67,840 67,544 508,341
Exchange losses 14,801 20,195 3,387 112,129
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

e

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Canon Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (expressed in yen) of Canon Inc. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The segment information required to be disclosed in financial statements under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America is not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Foreign issuers are currently exempted from such disclosure requirement in Securities Exchange Act filings with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

in our opinion, except for the omission of the segment information as discussed in the third paragraph of this
report, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Canon Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in note 1 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, Canon Inc. and subsidiaries changed
their method of accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities in the year beginning January 1, 2001.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated into United States dollars solely for the
convenience of the reader. We have recomputed the translation and, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements expressed in yen have been translated into United States dollars on the basis set forth in note 2 of the
notes to consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo, Japan K}DM {7'

January 30, 2002
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MAJOR CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

(As of December 31, 2001)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND CORPORATE AUDITORS

(As of December 31, 2001)

MANUFACTURING MARKETING & OTHER
Canon Electronics inc. Canon Sales Co., Inc.
Canon Aptex inc. Canon System and Support Inc.
Copyer Co,, Ltd. Canon Software Inc.
Canon N.T.C,, Inc. Canon USA, Inc.
Canon Components, Inc. Canon Canada, Inc.
Nisca Corporation Canon Mexicana, S. de RL. de CV.
Canon Chemicals Inc. Canon Latin America, Inc.
Canon Precision Inc. Canon do Brasil IndUstria e Comércio Limitada
Oita Canon Inc. Canon Chile, SA.
Nagahama Canon Inc. Canon Panama, SA.
Oita Canon Materials Inc. Canon Argentina, SA.
Optron, Inc. Canon Business Solution — Central, Inc.
Canon Virginia, Inc. Canon Business Solution — West, nc.
South Tech, Inc. Canon Business Solution — Southeast, Inc.
Custem Integrated Technology, Inc. Canon Business Solution — Northeast, Inc.
Industrial Resource Technologies, Inc. Canon Financial Services, Inc.
Canon Business Machines, Inc. Canon Information Technology Service, Inc.
Canon Ciessen GmbH Canon Europa N.V.
Canon Bretagne SA. Canon Europe Ltd.
Canon Inc,, Taiwan Canon UK. Ltd.
Canon Opto (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Canon Deutschland GmbH
Canon Dalian Business Machines, Inc. Canon France SA.
Canon Zhuhai, Inc. Canon Communication & Image France SA.
Tianjin Canon Co,, Ltd. Canon ltalia S.p.A.
Guang-Dong United Optical Instrument Canon Espafia S.A.
Co,, Ltd. Canon SA.
Canon Hi-Tech (Thailand) Ltd. Canon Nederland N.V.
Canon Engineering (Thailand) Ltd. Canon Belgium N.V./SA.
Canon Electronic Business Machines Canon (Schweiz) AG
(HK) Co, Ltd. Canon Gesellschaft m.b.H.
Canon Engineering Singapare Pte. Ltd. Canon Svenska AB
Canon Engineering Hong Kong Co., Ltd. Canon Oy
Canon Vietnam Co,, Ltd. Canon North-East Oy
Canon (Suzhou) Inc. Canon Norge AS.
Canon Zhongshan Business Machines CEE Canon East Europe Vertriebsgesellschaft
Co,, Ltd. m.b.H.
Canon Systems Management Eurcpe Ltd.
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT Canon Australia Pty. Ltd.
Canon Development Americas, Inc. Canon New Zealand Ltd,
Canon Research Centre Europe Ltd. Canon Finance Australia Ltd.
Canon Research Centre France S.A. Canon Finance New Zealand Ltd.
Canon Information Systems Canon Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Research Australia Pty. Ltd. Canon Hongkong Co,, Ltd.
Beijing Pecan Information System Co., Ltd. Canon (China) Co, Ltd.

Canon Marketing (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Canon Marketing (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Canon Marketing (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Canon Marketing (Hong Kong) Co,, Ltd.

Canon Semiconductor Engineering
Korea Inc.

Canon Semiconductor Equipment
Taiwan Inc.
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Toru Takahashi
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TRANSFER OFFICE AND REGISTRARS

Canon Inc.
30-2, Shimomaruko 3-chome, Ohta-ku, Tokyo
146-8501, Japan

Transfer Office for Common Stock in Japan
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co, Ltd.
5-1, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
100-8240, Japan
Depositary and Agent with Respect to
/é\rrpencan Depositary Receipts for Common
ares

Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York
60 Wall Street, New York, NY. 10260-0060,
USA.

Depositaries and Agents with Respect to
Global Bearer Certificates for Common
Shares

Deutsche Borse Clearing AG Borsenplatz 7-11
60313 Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Deutsche Bank AG, U+/Emissionsfolgegeschéfte,
Taunusanlage12, 60325 Frankfurt am Main,
Germany
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Stock exchange listings:
Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya, Fukuoka, Sapporo,
New York and Frankfurt stock exchanges

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) are
traded on the New York Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ annual general meeting:
March 28, 2002, in Tokyo

Other information:

For publications or information, please
contact the Corporate Communications
Headquarters, Canon Inc,, Tokyo, or access
Canon's Website at

WWW.canon.com
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